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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION OF L ONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SER VICES
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603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

w^'w.dhhs.nh.gov

May 18, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports and
Sen/ices, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Legal
Assistance (VC#154648), 117 North State Street, Concord New Hampshire 03301, for the continuation of
Legal Services to eligible adults, age sixty (60) or older, by increasing the total price limitation by
$341,314.45 from $579,758.46 to $921,072.91 and by extending the completion dates from Septemljer 30,
2020 to September 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contracts were
approved by Governor, and Council on October 26, 2016, item #13 and most recently amended with
Governor and Council approval on May. 15, 2019, item #20A. 53% Federal. 47% General.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2021, and are anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2022 and State Fiscal Year 2023, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within
the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS. 50%
FEDERAL, 50% GENERAL

SFY Class Class Title
.  Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) .
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017
540-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $104,471.25 $0.00 $104,471.25

2018
540-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $146,242.22 $0.00 $146,242.22

2019
640-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $146,242.22 $0.00 $146,242.22

2020
640-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $146,242.22 $0.00 $146,242.22

2021
540-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $36,560.55 $109,739.45 $146,300.00

2022
640-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $0.00 $146,300.00 $146,300.00

2023
540-

500382

Social Service

Contracts
48130310 $0.00 $36,575.00 $36,575.00

Subtotal: $579,758.46 $292,614.45 $872,372.91

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporluniiies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-48-481010-1917, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC

HUMAN SVCS

PROG. CARES

SPY Class Class Title
Job'

. Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified Budget

2017
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proa Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svs
48130610 $0.00 $48,700.00 $48,700.00

2022
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00. $0.00

2023
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svs
48130610 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal: $0.00 $48,700.00 $48,700.00

Total: $579,758.46 $341,314.45 $921,072.91

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to extend contract
services and there are no renewal options available in the current contract. The Department
originally planned to conduct a competitive bid to reprocure these services. However the COVID-
19 pandemic has required the Department to change plans as both Department and vendor
operations have been negatively impacted. This request for a sole source extension is being
made to ensure there is no lapse in critical services provided under the current contract given the
circumstances confronting the Department today. As previously stated, the original contract was
approved by Governor and Council on October 26, 2016, Item #13. It was then subsequently
amended with Governor and Council approval on January 10, 2018, Item #15 and on May 15,
2019, Item #20A.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide legal services to help older individuals
secure and maintain their independence, as well as sustain their health and quality of life. As a
result of COVID-19, legal services will increase from 5,000 to 6,498 units for SPY 2021.

2022.

Approximately 2,000 individuals will be served from October 1, 2020 to September 30,

Services include legal advice and counseling to eligible individuals, litigation by attorneys,
and paralegal services to address questions and concerns that are civil in nature. Issues
addressed may include, but are not limited to. consumer concerns, family matters, housing issues,
public assistance benefits, utility shut-offs, and problems related to nursing home care or
residential care services. Legal services also include representation at hearings when necessary.
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The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  Provide legal advice, counseling, and litigations activities;
•  Provide legal representation activities provided at hearings or in court; and
•  Provide public awareness through outreach and education.

As referenced in the P-37, Section 18. the parties have the option to extend the agreement
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the. parties and
Governor and Council approval. There are no renewal options available in the contract, which is
why the Department's request to extend the contract an additional two (2) years is sole source. .

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request legal services provided to low
income elderly clients may l>e reduced or eliminated which could jeopardize their ability to remain
in their homes and communities. In addition, not approving this request may result in the need for
more-costly, long-term care services in traditional nursing homes or through community-based
care programs.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA# 93.044 / FAIN#1901NHOASS-01 and CFDA# 93.044 / FAIN#

2001NHSSC3-00, General Funds."

In the event that the Federal Funds become ho longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submittedi\

f)

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Tht Dcpartment 'of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
i>i providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the Legal ̂ ervlces Contract

This 3"* Amendment to the Legal Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") Is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to
as the "State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Legal Assistance, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit with a place of business at 117 North State Street. Concord. NH 03301.
WHEREAS.^pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October'26, 2016. (Item #13), as amended on January 10, 2018, (Item #15), and May 15. 2019, (Item
#20A) the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions specified In
the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; arid
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the,Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 30.2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$921,072.91. .

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #3,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Item #1.1:

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor

1.1.1. Thirty-two dollars and Ofty cents ($32.50) per one-half (1/2) for 1.498 units, for the
services provided by the Contractor In SFY 2021 pursuant to Exhibit A -
Amendment #3, Scope of Services. These Contractor shall use these units first.

1.1.2. Twenty-nine dollars and twenty-six cents ($29.26) per one-half (1/2) for 5,000 units
per. SFY, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A -
Amendment #3. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall use these units after the
units specified In Paragraph 1.1.1. have been billed.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, to read:

9. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
Subreciplent, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

New HampsHre Legal Assistance

RFA-2017-BEAS-04.LEGAL-01 -AOS

Amendment #3

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Irvtials

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date fame^eborah Schj&etz
"itle: Director

sj 161201^
Date

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Name: jYU P^Sy?A
Title:

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

RFA-2017-BEAS-04.LEGAL-01-A03

Amendment #3

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/21/20

Date Name:
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor of the State of New
Hampshire on: (date of approval letter)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Amendment #3

RFA-2017-8EAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A- Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons-with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
Contractor, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean consecutive
calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1.5. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall mean Monday
through Friday, excluding holidays observed by State of New Hampshire as non-
working days

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services, statewide, to eligible Individuals. .

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Population

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide Legal Services statewide, pursuant to the Older

Americans Act Title III Service Program, to individuals residing in independent

living settings who:

2.1.1.1. Are aged sixty (60) years and older with the greatest economic or social

needs as described in the Older Americans Act Title III Services (Older

Americans Act of 1965, as amended through P.L. 114-144, Enacted

April 19, 2006; and

2.1.1.2. Are not receiving the same or similar services through the Veterans'
Administration: or.

2.1.1.3. Are eligible for Medicaid services, but who are not currently receiving

the same or similar services through one (1) of the Department's
Medicaid Waiver Programs.

2.1.2. The Contractor rnust provide legal services to eligible nursing home residents

and clients living in a residential care setting.

2.2. Area Served

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible clients statewide.

New Hampshire Legal Services Contraclors initials:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LeGAL-01-A03

Page 1 of 9 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.3. Service Descriptions

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide attorney and paralegal services for legal advice,
counseling and litigation services to address client questions and concerns of
a civil nature related to:

2.3.1.1. Clietit concerns, including but not limited to:

2.3.1.1.1. Financial exploitation.

2.3.1.1.2. Consumer protection and debt collection.

2.3.1.1.3. Family legal problems.

2.3.1.2. Family matters:

2.3.1.3. Health care;

2.3.1.4. Public and private housing;

2.3.1.5. The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program;

2.3.1.6. Public assistance benefits and utility shut-offs; and

2.3.1.7. Problems related to nursing home care or residential care services.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall ensure attorneys provide attorney representation of
clients at hearings or in court, when necessary.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall provide statewide telephone access to clients through a
toll-free number.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall increase public awareness of services by:

2.3.4.1. Performing community outreach and education; and

2.3.4.2. Providing materials regarding client legal right and available legal
services as written or electronic.

2.4. Client Access to Services

2.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure clients can access sen/ices described in this

contract by either:

2.4.1.1. Applying directly for, or requesting legal services:

2.4.1.1.1. The Contractor shall determine eligibility for these services
in accordance with the rules and requirements of Title III
Services.

2.4.1.1.2. The Contractor shall .determine eligibility of the clients and

provide written notice of eligibility within forty-five (45) days
from the date eligibility was determined, indicating what
sen/ices are to be provided, at what frequency and Indicate
the beginning and end dates for the client's eligibility period.|

New Hampshire Legal Services Contractors Initials; ^
RFA.2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 i/ i nA
Page 2 of 9 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.4.1.2. Client referred by Adult Protection Services (APS):

2.4.1.2.1. In the event that a client has been referred to the Contractor

by APS, the Contractor shall not take an application,
determine or re-determine the client's eligibility, or issue

eligibility notifications, in accordance with the NH
Administrative Rules He-E 502.

2.5. Staffing:

2.5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to the following staffing requirements:

2.5.1.1. Maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the
functions, requirements, roles and duties in a timely fashion for the
number of clients and geographic area as identified in this Agreement.

2.5.1.2. Verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate
training, education, experience and orientation to fulfill the.
responsibilities of their respective positions.

2.5.1.2.1. This includes keeping up-to-date personnel and training
records and documentation of all clients requiring licenses'

and certifications.

2.5.2. Develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and submit the plan, in writing, to the
Department within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council
approval of the Agreement. The plan must include but is not limited to:

2.5.2.1. The process for replacement of staff in the event of loss of key
personnel or other personnel during the period of this Agreement:

2.5.2.2. A description of how additional staff resources will be' allocated to
support this Agreement in the event of inability to meet any
performance standard;

2.5.2.3. A description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff
replacements;

2.5.2.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely
manner, staff replacements and additions with comparable experience;
and

2.5.2.5. The method of bringing staff replacements and additions up-to-date
regarding this Agreement.

2.6. Reporting

2.6.1. The Contractor shall complete and submit quarterly reports on a pre-defined
electronic form supplied by the Department. The report must be submitted by
the fifteenth (15th) of the month following the quarter end date. The data will
include, but not be limited to the following:

Now Hampshire Lieoal Services Conlraclors Inillala:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 ' A\C\U^
Page 3 of 9 Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.6.1.1. Expenses by program service provided, defined as Legal Services:

2.6.1.2. Revenue by program service provided, by funding source;

2.6.1.3. Number of units served by program service provided, by funding
source;

2.6.1.4. Number of undupllcated clients served by service provided, by funding
source;

2.6.1.5. Number of Title III clients served with non-Bureau of Elderly and Adult

Sen/ices (BEAS) funds;

2.6.1.6. Unmet client need and waiting list; and

2.6.1.7. Length of time clients are on a waiting list.

.2.6.2. The Contractor shall submit Service Delivery Verification reports for the
following required performance measures:

2.6.2.1. Service Records

2.6.2.1.1. The number and percentage of clients for whom a report to
APS was made.

2.6.2.2. Experience

2.6.2.2.1. The number and percentage of clients surveyed (via
telephone, mail, e-mail, or face-to-face) who report their
experiences with their services and providers have been
satisfactory or better.

■ 2.6.2.2.2. The Contractor shall indicate the reason(s) why:

2.6.2.2.2.1. Applicants were referred to APS; and .

2.6.2.2.2.2. The number and percentage of clients

surveyed who reported their experiences
with their services were not satisfactory or

better.

2.6.2.3! The Contractor shall describe the quality improvement activity(s) to be
initiated to address identified concerns about the quality of services.

2.6.2.4. Service Delivery -

2.6.2.4.1. The Contractor shall indicate the riumber of open cases at

the end of each reporting period, per Unit 1.2.6.1.1.

2.6,2.4:2. The Contractor shall indicate the reason(s) applicants did
not receive their planned services; and

New Hampshire Legal Services Conlractors Inllials:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LeGAL-01-A03
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.6.2.4.3. The Contractor shall describe the quality improvement
activity(s) to be initiated to address identified concerns
about service delivery.

2.7. Client Fees and Donations

2.7.1. Title 111 Services

2.7.1.1. With the exception of Paragraph 5.2.1. of this Agreement below, NH
Administrative Rule He-E 502.12 allows Title III Contractors to ask
•clients receiving services for a voluntary donation towards the cost of
the service! and provides guidance for requesting , donations. The
donation is to be purely voluntary, and no one can be refused services
if they are unable or unwilling to donate.

2.7.1.2. The Contractor shall report the total amount of collected donations on
the quarterly report and email to Shawn.Martin@dhhs.nh.gov or mail
to:

Department of Finance ■
Shawn Martin
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.8. Adult Protection Services (APS)

2.8.1. Pursuant to RSA 161-F: 42 et seq., BEAS provides protection services to
incapacitated adults to prevent and end neglect, abuse or exploitation.

2.8.2. When BEAS determines that a client needs protection services as described
in the Adult Protection Program NH Administrative Rule He-E 700, the
Contractor shall agree that the payment received from BEAS for the specified
services is payment-in full for those services and must refrain from making any
attempt to secure additional reimbursement of any type from the client for
those services.

2.8.3. The Contractor providing Title III services shall not charge fees or ask for
donations from clients referred by the Department's APS Program as long as
these clients remain active recipients of APS as verified by APS staff.

2.6.4. The Contractor shall report suspected abuse, negiect, self-neglect, and
exploitation of incapacitated adults as required by RSA 161 -F: 46 of the Adult
Protection law.

2.8.5. The Contractor shall make a good faith effort to assure the provision of some
level of services to those persons who the Department refers to the Contractor
and Identifies the client in need of protection services.

2.9. E-Studio Electronic Information System

New Hampshire Leflal Services Contraclors Inillals:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 Dale-^ XI ̂
Page 5 of 0



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.9.1. The Contractor shall use the Department's E-Studio electronic information
system. E-Studio is BEAS" primary vehicle for uploading important information
concerning time-sensitive announcements, policy releases, administrative rule
adoptions and other critical Information.

2.9.2. The Contractor shall identify all key personnel who will need E-Studio
accounts to ensure that information from the Department can be shared with
necessary agency staff. There is no cost to the Contractor for the Department
to create an E-Studio account and no limit on the number of staff an agency

Identifies to have access to E-Studio.

2.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure their E-Studio account{s) are kept current and
that the Department Is notified when a staff member is no longer working in
the program so their account can be terminated.

2.10.Criminal Background and Adult Protective Services Registry Checks.

2.10.1. The Contractor's staff members or volunteers, who will be interacting with, or
providing hands-on care to, clients receiving services, are required to
complete a BEAS State Registry check prior to providing services; in
accordance with the requirement of RSA 161-F: 49.

2.10.2. The Contractor shall conduct a New Hampshire Criminal Records background
check on all agency staff and prospective employees or volunteers, funded
under this contract, which must have client contact.

2.10.3. The Contractor, which'is licensed, certified or funded by the Department, shall
meet the requirements of RSA 161-F:49, which require the submission of the
BEAS State Registry Consent Form of prospective employees who must have
client contact, for review against the State Adult Protective Services Registry.

■ 2.11 .Grievance and Appeals

2.11.1. The Contractor shall maintain a system for tracking, resolving and reporting
client complaints regarding its services, processes, procedures and staff.

2.11.2. The Contractor shall develop a grievance process. Any grievances filed are to
be available to the Department upon request. At a minimum, the process must
Include the following;

2.11.2.1. Clientname;

2.11.2.2. Type of service;

2.11.2.3. Date of written grievance;

2.11.2.4. Nature and subject of the grievance;

2.11.2.5. Who in the agency reconsiders agency decisions;

New Hampshire Legal Services Conlroclors initials:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.11.2.6. What are,the issues that can be addressed in the grievance process;
and

2.11.2.7. How clients are informed of their right to appeal or file grievances.

2.12.Wait Lists

.2.12.1. The Contractor shall provide all services covered by this contract to the extent
that funds, staff and resources for this purpose are available.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall maintain a wait list In accordance with the NH

Administrative Rule He-E 502, when funding or resources are not available to
provide the requested services. A wait list includes, at a minimum:

2.12.2.1. The client's full name and date of birth;

2.12.2.2. The name of the sen/ice being requested;

2.12.2.3. The date upon which the clients applied for services, which must be
the date the application was received by the Contractor or BEAS;

2.12.2.4. The target date of implementing the services based on the
communication between the client and the Department or
Contractor;

2.12.2.5. The date upon which the client's name was placed on the wait list
must be the date of the Notice of Decision in which the client was

determined eligible for Title III services;

2.12.2.6. The client's assigned priority on the wait list, determined in
accordance with Subsection 11.3 below of this Agreement; and

2.12.2.7. A brief description of the client's circumstances and the services they
need.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall prioritize each client's standing on the wait list by
determining the individual's urgency of need in the following order.

.  2.12.3.1. Client is in an institutional setting or is at risk of being admitted to, or
discharged from, an institutional setting.

2.12.3.2. Declining mental or physical health of the caregiver.

2.12.3.3: Declining mental or physical health of the client.

2.12.3.4. Client has no respite services while living with a caregiver.

2.12;3.5. Length of time on the wait list.

2.12.3.6. When two (2)'or more clients on the wait list have been assigned the
sarhe service priority, the client served first will be the one (1) with
the earliest application date.

NOW Hampshire Legal Services Contractors Initials: _
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 r. , ^\\C\ ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.12.3.7. Clients who are being served under APS RSA 161-F: 42-57 must be
given priority status on the waitlist and in accordance with He-E
501.14 (f) and He-E 502.13.

2.12.3.8. Clients with adult protection needs in accordance with RSA 161-F:
42-57 must be exempt from the wait list.

2.12.4. When client is placed on the wait list, the Contractor shall riotify the client in
writing.

2.12.5. The Contractor shall maintain the wait list for the length of the contract period
and make it available to the Department upon request.

2.13.Notice of Failure to meet Service Obligations

2.13.1. In the event that the Contractor for any reason is unable to meet any service
obligations prior to the completion date, the Contractor shall provide written
notice of such inability at least ninety (90) days prior and must mall it to:

Bureau Director

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. Ny 03301

2.13.2. Examples of failure to meet service obligations just include, but are not limited
to:

2.13.2.1. Reducing hours of operation.

2.13.2.2. Changlng a geographic service area.

2.13.2.3. Closing or opening a site.

2.13.3. The written notification must include the following:

2.13.3.1. The.reasonsfor the inability to deliver services;

2.13.3.2. How service recipients and the community will be impacted;

2.13.3.3. How service recipients and the community will be notified; and

2.13.3.4.- The Contractor's plan to transition clients into other services or refer
the clients to other agencies.

2.13.4. The Contractor shall maintain a plan that addresses the present and future
needs of clients receiving services in the event that:

2.13.4.1. Service(s) are terminated or planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract.

2.13.4.2. The contract is terminated or is planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract by the Contractor or the State.

2.13.4.3. The Contractor terminates a services or services for any reason. \

Now Hampshire Legal Services Conlraclors Inlllals: ̂
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03 /'\ic\'VO
Page 8 of 9 Dalo: [



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.13.4.4. The Contractor cannot carry out all, or a portion of, the services,

terms or conditions outlined in the contract or sub-contracts.

2.14.Transition Process

2.14.1. The Contractor shall have a transition process for clients in the event that they

must be transltloned between the Department's contracted providers and must
submit their written transition process to the Department within thirty (30) days

of approval of the Contract Agreement. The process must ensure;

2.14.1.1. Uninterrupted delivery of services for clients;

2.14.1.2. A method of notifying clients and the community about the transition;
and

2.14.1.3.' A staff, member must be available to'address questions about the

transition.

New Hampshire Legal Services Conlraclors Initials:
RFA-2017-BEAS-04-LEGAL-01-A03

Page 9 of 9 Dale:



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL

ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 20, 1971. I

further ccrtily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63969

Certificate Number: 0004878013

SJ IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Deborah Butler. hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officerof New Hampshire Legal Assistance.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on November 7. 2019. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Sarah Mattson Dustin (may list more than one person)
(Name and Titleof Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on iDehalf of New Hampshire Legal Assistance to enter into contracts or agreements with the
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

Stale of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment fc)e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificateof Authority. I further certify that it is understO(^ that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Daied:B5M2!L_ Deborah Butler
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Deborah Butler

Title: Vice Chair of the Board of Directors

Signature; —
°  Oebby0ull<r{Uayl3,2020)

Email: dbutler@mcmxi.com

Rev. 03/24/20



NHLA Certificate of Authority
Final Audit Report 2020-05-13

Created; 2020-05-13

By: Cheryl Steinberg (c8tolnberg@nhla.org)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAA8AAzqxngBDR-TdMR5ldbR3sjn4CZIFENKx2

"NHLA Certificate of Authority" History

Q Document created by Cheryl Steinberg (csleinberg@nhla.org)
2020-05-13 - 4:47:49 PM GMT-IP address: 24.62.155.152

EV Document emailed to Debby Butler (dbutIer(gmcmxi.com) for signature

2020-05-13 - 4:51:08 PM GMT

Q Email viewed by Debby Butler (dbutler@mcmxi.com)
2020-05-13 - 5:09:17 PM GMT- IP address: 66.30.100.228

Document e-signed by Debby Butler (dbutler@mcmxi.com)

Signature Dalo: 2020-05-13 ■ 5:12:22 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 66.30.100.228

O Signed document emailed to Cheryl Steinberg (csteinberg@nhla.org) and Debby Butler (dbutler@mcmxi.com)
2020-05-13 - 5:12:22 PM GMT

Adobe Sign



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Board of Directors

ANNUAL BOARD RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING FUNDING APPLICATIONS

November 13, 2019

Be it resolved that the Executive Director of New Hampshire Legal Assistance

(NHLA) and/or her designee is authorized to seek and apply for funds from:

Endowment for Health,

Local Community Development Offices,

New Hampshire Bar Foundation (lOLTA and other),

New Hampshire Charitable Foundation and affiliated foundations and funds.

New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority,
(

New Hampshire Department of Justice,

New Hampshire Legislature (for renewal and possible expansion of NHLA's state appropriation),

U.S. Administration on Community Living,

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,

U. S. Department of Justice,

United Ways,

and is further authorized to apply for other public and private grants, contracts, and

awards, and donations, for civil legal services to the poor, to be used for general revenues

and for special'projects, and is further authorized to execute such documents as

necessary to accept such funds in the name of New Hampshire Legal Assistance.

This resolution shall remain in effect through December 31, 2020.

Adopted by the Board of Directors

November 13, 2019



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MWOOrrVYY)

05/13/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Slreel

Manchester NH 03101

CONTACT cara Scala

Kf.,v (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
ADDRESS: cscalalgcrossagency.com

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A' (Maine Mutual) Ins.
INSURED

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE INC

117 N STATE ST

CONCORD NH 03301-4407

INSURER B : '"S 15997

INSURER c ' /^llrnerica Financial Alliance 10212

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ^9120 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
-  INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF 1 POLICY EXP I .
POLICY NUMBER IMMmOWYYYI (MM/DO/YYYY) UMITSPTPE OF INSURANCE

ADor
INSD

SUBIT
VWD

Tnsr
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OTHER;

X LOC

BP13365128 -07/01/2019 07/01/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MSD EXP (Any en» P«ir»o«>)

PERSONAL i ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPIDP AGG

2.000,000

1.000.000

5.000

2,000.000

4,000.000

4,000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(En accldwul

S 2.000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per penon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BP13365128 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddertl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer accklenn

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000.000

KU13373043 07/01/2019 07/01/2020
AGGREGATE

X RETENTION S 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERA4EM8ER EXCLUDED?
(Mfnditory In NH)

KyM- describe under'
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekyw

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

H WKV9596241 (3a), NH 07/02/2019 07/02/2020
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS'VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required]

State of New Hampshire Department of Health

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER

OUR VISION. MISSION. AND VALUES

OUR VISION is that the low-income people of New Hampshire will have their voices heard in
the courtrooms and other legal and policy-making arenas of our state when their shelter, health
care, subsistence income, education, custody of their children, safety from abuse, or other basic
needs are at stake.

OUR MISSION is to fulfill America's promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services
to New Hampshire's poor, including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and
advocacy for systemic change.

OUR VALUES

• A justice system accessible to all is a core element of our democracy's social contract
that binds everyone in our state together in a web of rights and responsibilities.

•  If the justice system is to operate effectively and fairly, vigorous and skillful legal
advocacy should be available to those who cannot purchase it in legal disputes in which
their basic needs are at stake.

•  The legal aid network, the private bar, and the judicial*)' have a particular obligation to
promote these ideals and to lead efforts to persuade our political institutions to provide
the necessary resources to put these principles into practice.

•  Legal advocacy to assist individuals with day-to-day legal issues and systemic advocacy
to address the underlying causes of poverty are complementary strategies in a
comprehensive and effective legal aid system.

•  Client needs should drive the New Hampshire legal aid system and legal services should
be provided in a manner that respects the dignity and value of low-income people.

OUR OPERATING PRINCIPLES

•  Statewide Accessibilitv and Responsiveness to Community Legal Needs. The legal aid
system should be easy to access and available statewide, and it should have the capacity
to respond rapidly to changing client needs. Low-income people should be involved in
helping legal service providers identify the highest priority legal needs to be addressed.by
our programs.

•  Collaboration."The legal aid system in New Hampshire is a partnership whose successful
functioning requires maximum collaboration among legal services programs, the private
bar, the judiciai*)' and other entities within the broader legal community.



Stewardship. The legal aid system is continuously accountable to our clients, funders,
and partners. We have a duty of stewardship to preserve and enhance our programs and
services over the long-term for the benefit of future clients.

Organizational Excellence. The legal aid programs in New Hampshire are committed to
achieving excellence both in the quality of our service to clients and in the efficient use of
the resources available to us. We will take advantage of economies of scale whenever
possible and promote effective use of existing and emerging technologies by developing
necessary and appropriate organizational structures.

S  ■

Professional Excellence. To assure that NHLA and LARC provide low-income people
with high-quality legal services, our legal aid programs should recruit and retain staff of
the highest quality by offering competitive compensation and providing the training,
supervision, and technological support needed to assure the highest level of staff
performance for our clients.

Excerpted from Strategic Plan

Approved on November 14. 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We.
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

,We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

"In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position ofNew Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc., as of December 31, 2019 and.2018, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Other Matters

Siipplemenlaiy Informalion

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying combining statements of financial position and activities are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The informalion has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and. other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 30, 2020, on our consideration of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 30, 2020



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and equivalents $  645,108 $  616,746

Cash, restricted 130,253 25,443

Investments 875,059 700,000

Grants and contracts receivable 2,173,248 3,071,962

Contributions receivable, net 39,318 27,731

Prepaid expenses 33,127 37.422

Security deposits 13.850 13,850

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,909,963 4,493,154

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Property and equipment (net) 271,863 261,832

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 271,863 261,832

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,181,826 ■ $ 4,754,986

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $  96,388 S  88,329
• Accrued expenses 196,372 170,474

Deposits held for others 130,253 25,443

Current portion of note payable 5,000 11,000

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 428,013 295,246

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion 6,000

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - 6,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES 428,013 301,246

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board designated operating reserve

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

Time restrictions for future periods

TOTAL NET ASSETS

832,017

550,000

544,538

[,827.258

3,753,813

767,899

500,000

797,338
2,388,503

4,453,740

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4;18I.826 $ 4,754,986

See notes to financial statements

3



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended December 31,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA S  326,667 $  314,998

Government grants and contracts 1,293,160 726,148

. United Ways 43,333 59,547

Contributions - Foundations and Other 206,7)2 336,033

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 350,350 370,457

Case revenue 43,419 66,355

Investment income 25,179 .  7,405

Net assets released from donor restrictions 2,503,589 2,575,310

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 4,792,409 .  4,456,253

EXPENSES:

Program services:
Domestic violence project 1,360,361 831,881

Housingjustice project 559,071 ■641,909
Senior law project 373,543 443,004
Public benefits 205,384
Youth law project 87,385 146,025
Other civil legal ser\'ices l;234,307 1,460,473

Total program services 3,820,051 3,523,292

Supporting services:
Fund raising 197,846 212,422
Management and general 660,394 507,195'

Total supporting services 858,240 719,617

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,678,291 4,242,909

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 114.118 213,344

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS ,
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA 233,333 225,002

Government grants and contracts 1,245,664 1,133,778
United Ways 48,542 50,023

Contributions - Foundations and Other 162,005 405,088

Net assets released from donor restrictions (2,503,589) (2,575,310)

. DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (814,045) (761,419)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (699,927) (548,075)

NET ASSETS-Januaiy 1 4,453,740 . 5,001,815

NET ASSETS • December 31 S  3,753,813 $ 4,453,740

See notes tofinancial statements
4



NEW HA^^PS^^IRE LEGAL ASSISTAiNCE, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31. 2019

Program Ser\-ices Supporting Services

Domestic Housing Other Management

Violence Justice Senior Law Public Youth Law Civil Legal and Combined

Pmiert Project Project Benefits Pmieci Services Total , Fund Rai.sine General Total Total

Salaries S  837,591 S  374,991 S  231.181 S  129,630 S  55,690 S  762,606 S  2.391.689 S  61,131 S  443,072 S  504.203 S  2.895.892

Payroll ta.xes 64,249 28,843 17.730 ■ 9,852 4,229 56,877 181.780 4,833 33.709 38,542 220J22

Employee benefits 133,165 64,189 36.764 20,332 8,761 111,912 375.123 8,286 69,258 77,544 452.667

Space and occupancy 66.971 28.543 15.846 10.544 4,6.30 68,006 194.540 35,141 35,141 229.681

Office supplies and expenses 1U71 5.109 .3.713 1,733 741 9.311 31,978 15.295 7,488 22,783 54.761

Postage 3.187 UOl 867 392 152 U30 7.229 989 1,485 2,474 9.703

Equipment rental and maintenance 6.472 2.964 1,536 948 416 5,158 17.494 3,160 3,160 20,654

Communications 11.207 . 4.729 2,652 1.539 505 7,761 28,393 5,129 5,129 33,522

Library 15,102 6,441 3,565 2,057 903 9.886 37.954 6,856 6,856 44,810

Training and meetings 9,854 4.015 6.750 1.571 689 6.110 28.989 SO 5.246 5.296 34,285

Insurance 6.276 2,647 1.485 1.115 490 8.560 20.573 3.716 3.716 24,289

Dues and fees 7,207 3,005^ 1.745 1.043 399 5.837 19,236 272 3.998 4.270 23,506

Litigation expenses. 20,460 8,008 3J10 1,988 739 2.169 36,674 36.674

Temporaries'contract sen-ices 22,170 10,478 5.269 7.909 3.385 96,706 145,917 1,315 27.149 28.464 174JS1

Sub-Grants 115,454 7,346 34,583 11,929 4.437 46,344 220,093 220.093

Travel 28,840 6.137 5.773 2,673 1,162 4.734 49.319 564 9.011 9.575 58.894

Distributions to campaign partners 82,117 82.117 82.117

Other cxpcrtscs 785 325 774 129 57 323 2.393 22,994 435 23.429 25,822

Depreciation

Total Functional Expenses -

30.677 30.677 5,541 5,541 36.218

S  1,360.361 S  559.071 S  373,543 $  205JJ84 S  87,385 S  1.234,307 S  3.820.051 S  197,846 S  660,394 S  858.240 S  4.678.291

See notes tofinancial statements
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE. INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Program Services Supporting Sersices

Domestic Housing Other Management

Violence Justice Senior I-aw ■^'outh Law Civil Legal and Combined

Prniect Project Proieci Prpieci .Services Total Fund Raisinp Qeneral Total Total

Salaries $  503.360 . S 425.938 $  302,132 S  98,038 S  891.275 $ 2,220,743 $  50,382 $  338.454 S  388,836 S  2,609,579

Payroll taxes 38,507 32,584 23.113 7,500 66,834 168,538 3,966 26,875 30.841 199.379

Employee beiKfiis 78,242 66,933 46,827 15,305 126.629 333,936 4,970 50,505 55,475 389.411

Space and occupanc>* 39,922 32,695 21,142 7,420 89,708 190,887 5,128 25,955 31.083 221,970

Office supplies and expenses 8,086 6,900 6,129 1,607 14,240 36,962 12,844 6.595 19.439 56,401

Postage 1.811 1,458 1,075 337 1,728 •  6.409. 756 949 1.705 8,114

Equipment rental and maintenance 4.406 3,38! 2,178 771 7,376 18,112 487 •  2.463 2,950 21,062

Communications 6.461 5.313 3,458 1,219 11.599 28.050 754 3.814 4,568 32,618

Library 11,678 8,981 7,106 3,788 5,414 36,967 993 . 5,026 6,019 42,986

Training and meetings 7,936 15.827 5,345 829 4,004 33,941 1,051 4,633 5,684 39,625

Insurance 3,493 2,883 1.854 655 9,697 18,582 498 2,526 3,024 21.606

Dues and fees 3.204 2,997 2,280 696 6,617 15,794 424 2,147 2,571 18.365

Litigatioit expenses 13,145 6,483 3.825 ,  927 14,268 38,648 38.648

Temporaries/contract services ) 14,860 12,980 8,056 2.972 149,488 .  188,356 8.755 26,100 34.855 223,211

Sub-Grants 79.609 5.728 725 348 40,840 127.250 127,250

Travel 16,510 10.320 7,418 3,499 2.205 39,952 2.268 5,591 7,859 47,811

Distributions to campaign partners 97,314 97,314 97,314

Other expenses 651 508 341 114 579 2,193 21,349 3,118 24,467 26.660

Depreciation
Total Functional ILxpeases

17,972 17,972 483 2,444 2,927 20,899

S  831,881 $  641,909 $  443,004 $  146,025 $  1,460,473 $ 3.523,292 $  212,422' $  507,195 $  719,617 $  4,242.909

See notes tofinancial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  (699,927) ;$  (548,075)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
^ net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 36,218 ,  20,899

Net effect of changes in:

Grants and contracts receivable 898,714 589,294

Contributions receivable (1 1,587) (22,731)

Prepaid expenses : 4,295 (4,732)

Accounts payable 8,059 40,972

Accrued expenses 25,898 19,410

Deposits held for others .  104,810 (4.167)

Net cash provided by operating activities 366,480 90,870

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment. (46,249) (26,773)

Purchase of investments (175,059) (697,622)

Net cash used in investing activities ,  (221,308) (724,395)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on note payable (12,000) (12,000)

Net cash used for financing activities (12,000) ■  (12,000)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 133,172 (645,525)

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS-Januar>: 1 642,189 1,287,714

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - December 31

*

.  S 775,361 $  642,189

See notes tofinancial sioiemenls
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE l-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is a non-profit organization incorporated in 1971, vvith the mission
to fulfill America's promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services to New Hampshire's poor,
including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and advocacy for systemic change.

The accounting policies of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (the 'Entity'), conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as
indicated hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis ofPresentation

The financial statements have been.prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Reslrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated lime restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

The Entity has adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08 Clari^'ing the Scope
and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which Is meant to
assist entitles In evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal
transactions), or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions, and determining whether a contribution is
conditional. Adoption of ASU 2018-08 was required for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018, and accordingly, the Entity has adopted the new guidance as of
January 1, 2019. The amendments in ASU 2018-08 are applicable only to the portions of revenue or
expense not previously recognized,.and therefore have no impact on prior-period results or on opening
balances of net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2019 , 2018

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position •
Cash and equivalents $ 645,108 S 616,746
Cash, restricted 130.253 25,^^3

$  775,361 $ 642,189

Investments

Investments, which consist of brokered certificates of deposit and treasury bills, are reported at their fair
values in the statements of financial position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the statements of
activities and consists of interest income, and unrealized gains and losses, less external and direct internal
investment expenses.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value of the
estimated fair value. Conditional pledges are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. Ah contributions receivable are considered
current and expected to be received within one year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased items and at fair value for donated items as of
the date of donation. Property and equipment is summarized as follows:

Land

Building and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

2019 2018

$  10,000 $  10,000

474,993 474,993

2,050 2,050
268,411 248,932

755;454 735,975

(483.591) (474,143)

$  271,863 $  261,832



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method covering estimated three to ten-year lives for
equipment, seven to forty-year lives for the building and improvements, and over the life of the related
lease for leasehold improvements. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred
and betterments with a useful life in excess of three years are capitalized.

■Depreciation expense for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $36,218 and $20,899,
respectively.

Deposits Held for Others

Deposits held for others consist of funds that are held for the express purpose of third-party individuals
and organizations and are therefore not available to support the Entity's own programs.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses.the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the Entity's policy to charge off
uncollectible receivables when management determines the receivable will not be collected. Contributions .
receivable at December 31, 2019 are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible pledges of $ 1,750.

Case Revenue
y

The Entity receives a regular stream of case revenue from fees in Social Security and SSI disability cases.
These fee awards must be approved by the Social Security Administration Administrative Law Judge.
From time to time the Entity also receives larger attorney fee awards in individual and class action cases.
These class action fee awards are episodic, and it is not possible to predict in advance their amounts or the
dates they will be received.

Donated Services

The Entity receives donated professional services from a variety of part-time volunteers and interns in the
form of administrative assistance, as well as paralegal and legal services. The estimated fair value of these
donations is recorded as revenue and expenses in the statements of activities. Donated serxdces recognized,
as revenue and expenses in the statements of activities for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018
was $92,239 and $127,01 1, respectively.

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the allocated costs of the Campaign for Legal Services (See Note 12
below). Distributions of campaign donations to the Entity's campaign partner agency have been included
as fundraising expense because the Entity has an agreement to distribute these funds, which do not
represent typical, out-of-pocket operating expenses of the Entity. Distributions of campaign donations for
the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $82,117 and $97,314, respectively.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. ,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31., 2019 and 2018

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, employee
benefits, occupancy, office supplies and expenses, postage, equipment rental and maintenance,
communications, professional librar)', insurance, dues and fees, contract services, travel, and depreciation,
which are all allocated on the basis of time and effort, as noted previously.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2019 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that
need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

NOTE 2--LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. Financial
assets in excess of daily cash requirements are invested in brokered certificates of deposit.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet generakexpenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts not
available include the board designated operating reserve. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated reserve funds for liquidity purposes, the reserves could be drawn upon through board
resolution.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Financial-assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following;

2019 2018

Cash and equivalents $  645,108 $  616,746

Investments 875,059 700,000

Grants and contracts receivable 2,173,248 3,071,962

Contributions receivable, net 39,318 27,731

Total Financial Assets 3,732,733 4,416,439

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (2,371,796) (3,185,841)

Board designated operating reserve (550,000) (500,000)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  810.937 $  730,598

NOTE 3--SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The, Entity maintains bank deposits at financial institutions with local branches located in New
Hampshire. The Entity's cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to a total of $250,000 for all cash checking and sweep accounts. The Entity has entered into
agreements with the financial institutions to move funds in excess of FDIC limits into insured cash sweep
accounts. Funds held in the insured cash sweep accounts are placed into FDIC insured deposit accounts
with other financial institutions throughout the United States. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
Entity's bank deposits were fully insured.

NOTE 4--INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements -

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an. orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market
conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring
fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

12



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy .is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

A significant portion of the Entit>''s investments is in brokered certificates of deposit. The brokered
certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury bill are valued by the custodians of the securities using pricing
models based on credit quality, time to maturity, slated interest rates, and market-rate assumptions, and
are classified within Level 2.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of Decembers I, 2019 and 2018;

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2019

Certificates of deposit

Total Assets at Fair Value

Certificates of deposit

U.S. Treasury bill

Total Assets at Fair Value

l ,evel 1 ^ Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ 875,059 $ 875,059

$  - $ 875,059 $ $ .875,059

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31.2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ 524,344 $ 524,344

175,656 175,656

S  - $ 700,000 S S 700,000



NEW HAMPSHIRE LECwAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 5-GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

State of New Hampshire and Federal - Departments and Agencies $ 1,685,257 $ 2,353,542
Local Governments 3,131 53,708
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA 280,000 270,000
United Way (various branches) 34,375 37,190

Foundations and Other 170,485 357,522
$  2,173,248 S 3,071.962

NOTE 6~NOTE PAYABLE

Note payable at December 31, 2019 and 2018 consists of the following:

2019 2018

Promissory note payable, maturing July 2020;

payable in monthly installments of $1,000 $__5^000 ' 5__12;222.

The Entity's note payable is a result of a legal settlement agreement reached in November 2012. The
terms of the agreement require the Entity to make monthly payments of $1,000, with no interest, through
July 2020. In addition, as part of the settlement agreement, the holder of the pr6missor>' note will make
annual payments of $5,000 over a six-year period commencing April 30, 2013, to the Campaign for Legal
Services. The remaining note payable balance of $5,000 is scheduled to mature in the year ended
December 31, 2020.

NOTE 7-ACCRUED VACAriON LEAVE

Full-time employees earn annual vacation leave as they provide ser\'ices. Pursuant to Entity policy, full-
time employees may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon
termination of employment be compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay. Employees may not
"cash out" their accumulated vacation leave at any time during their employment. Accumulated earned
vacation leave at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $107,653 and $92,755, respectively, and has been
included as part of the 'Accrued expenses' liability in the statements of financial position.

NOTE 8-PENSION PLAN

The Entity operates a 401(k)-retirement plan, and under the plan's "safe harbor" rules, the Entity
contributes 3% of all employees' salaries to the plan. Under the terms of the plan, the Entity has the
discretion to make a higher level of contribution to the plan but is not obligated. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Entity's discretionary contribution was up to a 2% match of
contributing employees' salaries. Contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2019 and
2018 totaled $136,080 and $116,914, respectively.

14



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 9-NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions have been restricted for the following as of December 31, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Civil legal services $  70,124 • $  68,791

Fair Housing legal services 120,747 .  317,935

Enviornmental Justice Project 166,547 258,277

Elderly and Adult legal ser\'ices 109,441 80,000

Health Care Access 18,696 -

Medical and Legal Collaboration ' 5,875

Consumer protection 56,983 65,460

Campaign for Legal Services 1,000 1,000

Other 1,000 -

544,538 797,338

Subject to expenditure for specified period and purpose:
Civil legal scr\'iccs 1,017,709 987,192

Fair Housing legal services 136,679. , 91,756

Domestic violence legal ser\'ices .  - 152,058

Elderly and Adult legal services 219,438 269,120

Human Services and Homeless legal services 75,000 25,000

Victims of Crime legal services 369,132 817,168

Health Care Access 9,300 -

Supervised Visitation legal services' -
46,209

' 1,827,258 2,388,503'

Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions $ 2,371,796 $  3,185,841

NOTE 10-LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Entity leases its current Manchester, New Hampshire office building under an agreement that
commenced October 1, 2014 and ended September 30, 2019. As of March 22, 2018, the original lease
was amended, with new terms of May 1, 2018 through April 30, 2023. The Entity leases its Concord,
New Hampshire office under an agreement that commenced November 19, 2014 and ended
November 18, 2019. As of July 30, 2019, the original lease was extended, with new. terms through
Novetuber 18, 2024. The Entity leases its Berlin, New Hampshire office uiider an agreement that
commenced June 1, 2017 and ended June 1, 2019. As of June 1, 2019, the original lease was extended,
with new terms through May 31, 2020. The Entity leases its Claremont, New Haitipshire office under an
agreement that commenced January 1, 2017 and ends December 31, 2022. The terms of all of the
Entity's leases contain a provision that allow the Entity to terminate the lease prior to the end of the lease
term in the event of a funding reduction. Rental expense for leases was $187,458 and $181,027 for the
years ended December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

15



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for operating leases:

Year Ended Annual Lease

December 31. Commitments

2020 S 183,122

2021 180,409

2022 183,316

2023 121,180
2024 86,745

S  754,772

NOTE 11-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, approximately 31% and 27%, respectively, of total
unrestricted support and revenue was derived from an appropriation from the State of New Hampshire.
The discontinuation or reduction of the State appropriation would likely result in a decrease in services
provided by the Entity, until alternative revenues could be obtained.

NOTE I2--CAMPAIGN FOR LEGAL SERVICES

In June 2005, the Entity assumed administration of the Campaign for Legal Services (the Campaign) from
the New Hampshire Bar Foundation. The Campaign is a joint fundraising effort on behalf of the Entity
and the Legal Advice and Referral Center (LARC), a not-for-profit entity providing civil legal services to
low-income people in the State of New Hampshire. Revenue and expenses of these activities have been
reported as contributions received and made and as fund raising expenses in these financial statements.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Campaign had total unrestricted revenue and
support of $350,350 and $376,457, respectively, and total expenses, excluding distributions, of $ 115,729
and $97,416, respectively.

Distributions to the Campaign partners during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$234,621 and $278,041, respectively. Distributions were allocated and made as follows for the /ears
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018; the Entity received $152,504 and $180,727, respectively, and LARC
received $82,117 and $97,314, respectively.

NOTE 13--CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs and contracts. Such
programs may be subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
amounts, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by a grantor agency cannot be determined at this
time, although the Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 14-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 30, 2020 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 15-FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FASB has issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic S42), which the Entity is required tOMmplement for the
year ending December 31, 2020. Management believes that this update will have a potentially significant
impact on the financial statements. The Entity will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for transactions currently identified as operating leases.
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SCHEDULKI

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSIS TANCE, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31. 2019

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
Slate Agency/Grant Program/State
Grant Number

DEPARTMENT OK HOUSING AND URBAN DEV ELOPMENT

CDBG - Enlidement Grants Cluster:

Pass Through Payments from thc.C'ty of Manchester, New Nampshirc
Community Development Block Grants/Entitiement Grants

Pass Through Payments from the City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire
Cotnmiinity Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Received directly from U.S. Treasur)' Department

Fair Housing Initiatives Program
•  #FPEII900I9

#FPEI6I0I3-0I-01

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMEN T OF JUSTICE

Pass Through Payments from the County of Strafford, New Hampshire-
Justice Systems Response to Families

Received directly from U.S. Treasur>' Department

Legal Assistance for Victims
#20l6-WL-AX-0037

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Department of Justice
Crime Victim Assistance

#20I7VL22

#20I9VVOC60

#2020VL22

Federal Total

Catalogue Federal
Number E.NDcnditures

14.218

14.218

14.408

16.021

16.524

16.575

3.500

2,005

5,505

187.500

75,000

262,500

268,005

2.439

152,057

169,690

292,700

324,622

Passed Through

to Subrccinients

15,782

48,094

106.284

787,012 154.378

Violence Against Women Formula Grants
#20I8-WF-AX-0017 .

Total Department of Ju.slicc

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Bureau
of Elderly and Adult Services
Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging -.Title III, Part B • Grants
for Supportive Ser%'ices and Senior Centers
#I7AANHT3SS

Total Aging Cluster

Total Department of Health and Human Ser\'iccs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

16.588

93.044

45.000

986.508

128.896

128,896

128,896

$  1,383.409

170,160

$  170.160

Secnotes to schedule ofexpendiliires of federal awards
IS



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1-BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. under programs of the federal government for
the year ended December 31, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulaiions Part 200, Uniform Adminislralive
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform. Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented usinjg the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note. 1 to New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s financial statements.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain t)'pes of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3-INDIRECT COST RATE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4-RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of e.xpenditures of federal awards has been reported in the Entity's financial statements as
program services and management and general expenses.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors Report

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 30, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal conlrol) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on,the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a.reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the ehtit>''s financial statements will hot be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance;

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have hot been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters-

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material niisstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Governmeni Aiicliiing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire

March 30, 2020 •
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Siipplemeni that could have a direct and
material effect on New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2019. New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsihility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc.'s major federal program, based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. .We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United Stales of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program' occurred. An audit includes e.xaniining, on a test
basis, evidence about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire
Legal Assistance,.Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and .material effect on its
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

.  Management of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the t)'pes of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the-auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in inlernal conlrol over compliance exists when the .design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in inlernal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, i However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. ^

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control,over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

OJLuJduOiX^ ^ C-
Manchester, New Hampshire

March 30, 2020
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New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Section I—Summary of Auditor's Results
)

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material \veakness(es) identified?
Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

X  no

none reportedX

X no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major federal programs:
Material \veakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X no

Identification of major federal.program(s):

CFDA Numbcrfsl Name of Federal Program or Cluster

16.575 Crime Victim Assistance

Dollar, threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ . 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X yes no
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Section II—Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section Ill-Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position
December 31. 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable, net

Prepaid c.xpcnscs
Security deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

New j-iampshire

Legal Assistance

546,413

130,253

875,059

2.173,248

96,604

.  33,127.
13,850

Campaign for

Legal Sendees

98,695

Eliminations

30,954 $ (88,240)

3,868,554 129,649 (88,240)

Total

645,108

130,253

875,059

2,173,248

39.318

33,127
13,850

3.909.963

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Property and equipment (net)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

271,863

271.863

271,863

271.863

TOTAL ASSETS $  4,140,417 129.649 $ (88,240) $ 4,181,826

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others

Current portion of note payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

55,979

196,372

130,253
5,000

.387,604

387,604

128.649 S  (88,240) $

128,649 (88.240)

128,649 (88,240).

96,388

196,372

130,253
5.000

428,013

428,013

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignaled

Board designated operating reserve

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

Time restrictions for future periods

TOTAL NET ASSETS

832,017

550,000

543,538

1,827.258

3.752,813

1.000

1 ,000

832,017

550,000

544,538

1.827,258

3,753,813

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,140,417 $ 129,649 $ (88,240) $ 4,181,826
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position
December 31. 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cquivalcnls

Cash, rcsiriclcd

Invcstmcnis

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Security deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

New Hampshire

i^csal Assistance

480,826

25,443

700,000

3.071.962

110,085

37,422

13,850

Campaign for

Legal Ser\'ices

$  135,920

Eliminations

20.550 $ {102,904)

4,439,588 .  156,470 (102,904)

Total

616,746

25,443

700,000

3,071,962

27.731

37,422
13.850

4.493.154

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Property and equipment (net)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

261,832

261,832

261,832

261.832

TOTAL ASSETS $  4,701,420 156,470 $ (102,904) $ 4.754.986

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

35,763

170,474

25,443

11,000

242,680

155,470 $ (102,904) $

155.470 (102,904)

88,329

170,474

25,441
11.000

295,246

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABIL

TOTAL LIABILITIES

"lES

6.000

6.000

248.680 155,470 (102,904)

6,000

6.000

301.246

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board designated operating reserve

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

Time restrictions for future periods

TOTAL NET ASSETS

767,899

500,000

796,338

2,388,503

4.452,740

1,000

1,000

767,899

500,000

797,338

2,388,503

4.453.740

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 4.701.420 S 156.470 $ (102,904) $ 4,754,986
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE. INC.

Combining Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31,2019

CHANCES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA
Govcmment grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Ser\'iccs
Case revenue

Invesinicnt income

Net assets released from donor restrictions

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

New Hampshire
Legal Assistance

326,667

1.293,160

43.333

206,712

152,504

43.419

25.179

2,503,589

4.594.563

Campaign for
Legal Ser\'ices Eliminations

$  350,350 S (152.504)

350.350 (152.504)

Tola!

326,667

1.293,160

43,333

206.712

350,350

43.419

25,179
2,503,589

4.792,409

EXPENSES;

Program ser\'ices:
Domestic violence project
Housing Justice project
Senior law project

Public benefits

Youth law project
Other civil legal services

Total program sen-ices
Supporting sen-ices;
Fund raising
Management and general

Total supporting sen'iccs
TOTAL EXPENSES

1,360.361
559,071

373,543

205,384

87.385

1,234,307

3.820,051

660,394

660,394

4.480.445

350,350 (152.504)

350,350 (152.504)

350,350 (152.504)

1.360,361

559.071

373,543

205,384

87,385

1.234,307

3.820,051

197,846
660,394

858.240

4,678,291

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOU T DONOR RESTRICTIONS 14,1 18 II4.II8

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other

Net assets rclctiscd from donor restrictions

DECREASE IN NE T ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS-Januai-)' I

NET ASSETS - December 31

233,333

1,245,664

48.542

162,005

(2,503.589)

(814.045)

(699,927)

4,452,740

$  3,752,813

1,000

1.000

233,333

1,245,664

48,542

162,005

(2,503.589)

(814,045)

(699,927)

4.453.740

$ 3,753,813
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE. INC.

Combining StsUcmcnl of Acllvilies
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

CHANCES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOL'l'A
Government grants slnd contracts
United Ways
Contributions ■ Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Case revenue"

Investment income

Net assets released from donor restrictions

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

New Hampshire' Campaign for
Legal Assistance Legal Services

314,998
726,148

59.547

336,033

180,727

66.355

7.405
2.569.310

Eliminations

4.260.523

$  370,457 $ (180,727)

6.000

•376.457 (180.727)

Total

314,998

726.148

59,547

336,033

370.457

66,355

7,405-
2.575,310

4,456,253

EXPENSES:

Program ser\'iccs:
Domestic violence project
Housingjustiec project
Senior law project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services

Total program services
Supporting ser\'ices:

Fund raising
Management and general

Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

831,881

641,909

443,004

146.025

1.460.473

831,881

641.909

443,004

146,025

1.460,473

3.523,292 ' ,  . - 3.523,292

17,692

507.195

375.457 (180,727) 212,422

507.195

524.887

4.048,179

375,457

375,457

(180.727) .

(180.727)

719.617

4.242.909

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 212.344 1.000 213,344

CHANGES IN NET ASSE PS WITH DONOR RESTRICFIONS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways

Contributions - Foundations and Other

Net assets released from donor restrictions

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NE r ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January 1

NET ASSETS - December 31

225,002

1,133,778

50.023

405.088

(2.569,310)

(755,419)

(543,075)

4.995.815

(6,000)

(6,000)

(5,000)

6.000

$ 4.452,740 $ 1.000

225,002

1,133,778

50,023

405,088

(2,575,310)

(761,419)

(548,075)

5.001,815

$ 4.453.740
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE Board of Directors (Updated February 2020)

KILE ADUMENE

(Secretary)

Manchester Community
Health Center

145 Hollis St., Manchester, 03101 603-820-2121 , kadumene/rtlsmail.com

JOHN T. BEARDMORE Fidelity Investments John.BeardmorefS),fnir.com

GEORGE DANA BiSBEE, Esq.
(Co-Chair)

DEBORAH BUTLER, CPA

(VP)

Deborah Butler, CPA

1911 Office

P.O. Box 323, 20 Central Sq.,
Keene. 03431

603-352-2448 dbutlerfolmcmxi.com

LAUREN SNOW CHADWICK,
Esq.

National Education

Association

MICHAEL DELANEY, Esq.
McLane Middleion 900 Elm St., P.O. Box 326

Manchester, 03105-0326
603-625-6464

michael.delanevt<t)mclane.com

(SAMANTHA ELLIOTT, Esq.)
(VP-LARC) (LARC Board .only)

Gallagher, Callahan &
Gartrell, P.C.

214 North Main St., P.O. Box 1415

Concord, 03302-1415
603-228-1 181

elliott^olfcelaw.com

CLAIRE H. GACNON, CPA
Easlerseals NH 555 Auburn St., Manchester, 03103 603:621-3559

cfiaenont2)easterseal.snh.orG

MARGARET GOODLANDER,

Esq.

ELIZABETH GREENWOOD

DOUGLAS P. HILL, Esq.

ANNE JENNESS, Esq.
Gallagher, Callahan &
Gartrell, P.C.

214 North Main St., P.O. Box 1415
Concord, 03302-14.15

603-545-3622 ienness(2).2cslavv.com

QUINN KELLY, Esq.
(Treasurer)

Boyle, Shaughnessy &
Campo PC

650 Elm St., Suite 404
Manchester, 03 lOl

603-668-6216 akellev/^bsctrialattornevs.com

MICHAEL S. LEWIS, Esq.
Rath, Young &
Pignatelli, PC

One Capital Plaza, P.O. Box 1500
Concord, 03302-1500

603-226-2600 mslf^rathlavv.com

SINDISO MNISI WEEKS, LLB,

Ph.D.

University of
Massachusetts-Boston

100 Morrissey Blvd.
Boston, MA 02125

REBECCA NANN
Holistic Therapeutic
Arts

JOHN J. PELLETIER, SR. ■

DEBORAH KANE REIN, Esq.

(Co-Chair)

Hess Gehris Solutions • 95 N. State St. Concord, 03301 603-724-5081 deborah/?i)hesseehris.com

TALESHA SAINT-MARC, Esq.
Bernstein Shur 670 N. Commercial St., PO Box 1120

Manchester, NH 03105-1120 '

603-665-8814 tsaintmarc(a).bemsteinshur.com

ERIN VANDEN BORRE! Esq.
Orr & Reno, PA 45 South Main St., Ste. 400

P.O. Box 3550, Concord, 03302-3550

603-568-8764 cell EvandenBorrefa)orr-reno.com
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CHERYL S. STEINBERG

EXPERIENCE;

NEW.HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, Concord, New Hampshire

Director, Senior Citizens Law Project, May 2010 - present

Oversee project activities, represent clients focusing on illegal and abusive debt collection practices,
financial exploitation and nursing home/assisted living discharges, and provide training and outreach'.

Development Director, October 2006 - September 2010

Responsible for grant writing, research and management, and overseeing individual fundraising campaign.

Staff/Directing Attorney, January 1999.- August 2007

Served in several capacities including general staff attorney, attorney/manager for the Senior Legal Advice
Line, and project director for the New Hampshire Health Law Collaborative.

DISABILITY RIGHTS CENTER-NH, Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, January 1997 - December 1998

Represented.persons with disabilities in a variety of civil legal matters, including special education law.

CONNOR AND KITCHEN, Manchester, New Hampshire
OfCounsel, August 1996-January 1997

Represented persons in family and special education law matters.

LAW OFFICES OF ROBERT V. JOHNSON, II, Concord, New Hampshire

Associate, October 1995-July 1996

Represented persons in a wide range of matters including personal injuiy, workers' compensation, probate
and family law.

CHAMBERLAIN AND CONNOR, Manchester, New Hampshire
Associate, August 1993 - October 1995

Represented persons in family law matters with a concentration in child advocacy and special education
law.

THE HONORABLE SHANE DEVINE, SENIOR JUDGE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, Concord, New Hampshire

Extern, September 1992-May 1993

Performed legal research and drafted court orders on a wide range of legal issues.
EDUCATION:

FRANKLIN PIERCE LAW CENTER, Concord, New Hampshire
. Juris Doctor, May 1993

SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY, Carbondale, Illinois

Bachelor of Arts, Sociology, August 1983

Honors; Sociology Major Honors Award

BAR ADMISSION AND PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS;

Admitted to New Hampshire Bar, October 1993; member, National Academy of Elder Law Attorneys.



RUTHHEINTZ

EDUCATION

University of California, BoaltHall School of Law, Berkeley, CA
^  ID., May 1995

Dartmouth College
B.A. cum laude with major in eagineering sciences, Juue 1988

BAR ADMISSIONS

State Bar of California - 1996 (inactive)
State Bar of Ohio - 1997 (inactive)
State Bar of Oregon - 1999 (submitted Fonn A resignation in 2007)
State Bar of Ne\Y Hampshire - 2004

EXPERIENCE -

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Littleton, New Hajnpshire
Staff Attorney, starting June 2004, Managing Attorney, September 2008 to. present.
Represent and provide legal advice to low-income and senior clients living in nortliem New Hompshiie
with a wide variety of legal problems: housing (evictions, conditions, Section 8 temiiuations, fair
housmg); Social Security and Medicaid; family law (divorce, custody and visitation, child support,
domestic violence rcstiaining orders); unemployment compensation and other public benefits; utilities;
and other matters. Appear in state and federal comts and at administrative hearings.

Southeastern Ohio Legal Services, Portsmouth, Zanesville, and Newark, Ohio
Staff Attorney, May 1996 to March 1999, April 2001 to May 2004.
Represeirted and provided legal advice to low-income clients living in i-uval Ohio with a wide variety of
Idgal problems: family law (divorce, custody and visitation, child support, domestic violence); horising
(evictions, conditions, rent escrow, land installment contracts, fOrcclosmes); consumer law including
predatory lending and debt collection; utilities; Social Security, imemplpyment compensation, and other-
public benefits; special education; wills; and other matters. Member of the "housmg team" aud
"predatory lending team" to strategize and address concerns of low-income people. Appeared in state
and federal courts aud at administrative hearings.

Legal Aid Services of Oregon, Pendleton, Oregon
Staff Attorney, April 1999 to April 2001.
Represented and provided legal advice pi-imarily to members and other Native American residents of
the UraatUla Indian Reservation in various ar eas of poverty law and Indian law. Appear ed in ti-ibal and •
state com'ts and at admiiustrative hearings.

Sail Francisco Neighborhood Legal Assistance Foundation, San Francisco, California
■  ■ Domestic Relations Unit Law Clerk, Jamaxy 1^94 to May 1995.

East Bay Community Law Center-, Berkeley, California
If/K t/m7 7«/er/j, January 1995 to May 1995.

Legal Aid Society of Alamcda County, Oakland, California
Law Clerk, June 1993 to June 1994.

i7amily Violence Law Center, Berkeley, CA
Volunteer, Spring and Surnmer 1993.

Tongass Alaska Girl Scout Council, Juneau, AK
VISTA Volunteer, November 1989 to November 1990..



GEOFFREY D. KETCHAM

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

117 North State Street, Concord, NH 03301

603-223-9750, ext. 2823 • E-mail: eketcham@nhla.org

Experience

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (NHLA), Concord, NH, 2018-present
Managing Attorney, Concord Branch Law Office
Supervise locally-based NHLA advocates, support staff, interns, law students, volunteers
Statewide administrative and court advocacy and litigation

Legislative and administrative advocacy, statewide projects, community partnerships
New Hampshire Bar Association

Northeast Legal Aid, Inc. (Merrimack Valley Legal Services), Lowell, MA, 2004-2018
Staff Attorney, housing, family/domestic relations, elder & public benefits
Caretakers of Children at Risk (CCR) Project Coordinator (2017-2018)

Northeast Housing Court Lawyer for a Day Program Coordinator (2014-2017)
■  Housing Unit Head (2014-2017)

Training/mentoring new staff; AmeriCorps supervisor; supervise interns, law students
Administrative and court advocacy and litigation

Strategic Planning, Merger, Private Attorney Involvement & Needs Assessment
committees

Assist with grant compliance and development

Greater Lowell Bar Association

Gordon College, Wenham, MA, Adjunct Professor, 2015
Department of Political Science; Course Title: Law and Society

Legal Aid of East Tennessee, Inc., (Knoxville Legal Aid Society), Knoxville, TN, 1999-2003
Staff Attorney, public benefits, consumer & general practice
Administrative and court advocacy and litigation

•  Community presentations & outreach; develop & edit program publications
Tennessee Alliance of Legal Services (TALS) task forces

Knoxville Bar Association

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Advisory Council

•  Full Seiwice Schools Project, Detainer Project, Saturday Bar, Veterans Stand Down,
Fresh Start classes. Urban League seminars

The Ncal Law Firm, Knoxville, TN, 1998-1999, Associate, general civil practice
Bar Admissions: Tennessee, 1998; Eastern District of Tennessee (U.S. District Court), 2003;

Massachusetts, 2005, (2004 pursuant to Rule 3:04); New Hampshire, 2019; United States
District Court, District of New Hampshire, 2019

Education

Doctor of Jurisprudence, University of Tennessee College of Law, Knoxville, TN, 1998
Bachelor of Arts in History, Gordon College, Wenham, MA, 1994
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Contributions to Legal Field & Community

Legal Tactics (MA tenant rights publication) Author & Reviewer (2017-2018)
Commission on the Status of Grandparents Raising Grandchildren panel member (2018)
Northeast Housing Court Lawyer for a Day Program Training (2006-2017)
Northeast Housing Court Tenancy Preservation Program Advisory Group (2014-2018)
Massachusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children presentation (2014)-
Greater Lowell Education and Advocacy Network (GLEAN) Advisory Team (domestic,
violence high risk group) (2012-2014)

Middlesex Community College, Work Readiness Program presentation (2008)
Community presentations & outreach; develop & edit program publications

Training Opportunities

New Hampshire Bar Association, Continuing Legal Education
. NHLA Trial Skills and Substantive programs

Massachusetts Legal Assistance Corpbration programs
Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education programs

Massachusetts Legal Reform Institute, Inc. programs

American Bar Association Litigation training for Legal Services Advocates
National Institute for Trial Advocacy litigation training

National Consumer Law Center consumer rights conference

TALS conferences

Tennessee Commission on Continuing Legal Education

Other Involvement

New England Academy, Beverly, MA, Advisory Board Member (past)
First Congregational Church, Kingston, NH, music director
Legal Aid Staff Association; officer, member, committee chair/member (TN & MA)
Town & Timberlane Youth Recreational Athletics, YMCA coach and volunteer

Timberlane Music Association, member and volunteer

Kctcham, Page 2 of 2



Candacc Cappio Gcbhart

SUMMARY

Skilled paralegal with broad-based experience. Demonstrated ability to .
handle high volume caseload effectively and consistently. Proficiency in
legal research and writing, Excellent communicator. Keen organizational
and administrative skills. Exceptionally detail orientated.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE; Manchester, NH October 2005 - present
PARALEGAL

Provide support to staff attorneys and direct legal services to low-income and elderly clients in
the areas of housing, bankruptcy, local welfare, and public benefits. Responsibilities include
providing counsel and advice to and extended representation of clients in subsidized housing,
local welfare and public benefit matters; extensive preparation of motions, memoranda or points
and authorities, discovery requests and responses thereto, summaries of depositions and medical
records, case chronologies, and the like. Attend depositions and court hearings, prepare trial and
oral argument notebooks, prepare exhibits for trial, draft Q & A, prepare clients for trial. Give
presentations about landlord and tenant law, local welfare, property tax relief, etc., to low-income
and elderly seiyice providers and the public.

ORR & RENO, PA, Concord, New Hampshire August 2004 - October 2005
PARALEGAL ^
Legal and factual research to support Litigation Department consisting of eleven full-time
litigators; directly assigned to the Litigation Department Director and three attorneys.
Responsibilities include extensive preparation of motions, memoranda or points and authorities,
discovery requests and responses thereto, summaries of depositions and medical records, case
chronologies, and the like. Attend depositions and court hearings, prepare trial and oral argument
notebooks, prepare exhibits for trial, draft Q & A, prepare clients for trial. Average monthly
billable hours: 122.

OTTIS, COAN & STEWART, LLC; Greeley; Colorado 2001 - July, 2004
LEGAL ASSISTANT

Assist partner in preparation of real estate documents, primarily for subdivisions (development
agreements, covenants, homeowner association documents); responsible for preparation of
mechanic's lien documents, demand letters for collection and, when necessary', pleadings for
same (complaint, motions for default judgment, etc.).

LAW OFFICES OF ZILDA MCCAUSLAND & EILER & AlCKLEN, LLC; 2000 - 2001
LEGAL ASSISTANT , ' Santa Rosa, California

Legal and factual research for a family law practitioner (McCausland) and the satellite office of a
firm specializing in defense of personal injury litigation matters. Approximately 40% of Ms.
McCausland's caseload was in the representation of non-English speaking children during the
term of dependency and neglect proceedings.

HATH A WAY, SPEIGHT & KUNZ, LLC; Cheyenne, Wyoming 1998 - 2000



LEGAL ASSISTANT

Assisted partner whose practice comprised of sen'ing as bond counsel on public financing
transactions throughout the State of Wyoming. Directly responsible for the preparation of
resolutions, trust indentures, agency agreements, and myriad closing documents for the Issuance
of bonds through public offering and private placement.

BOULDER COUNTY LEGAL SERVICES; Boulder, Colorado 1990 - 1994

PRO BONO COORDINATOR/PARALEGAL

Implemented, coordinated, recruited, and maintained the volunteer attorney program
(approximately 350 attorneys) through community outreach, technical assistance, case follow-up
and support. Responsible for interview, selection, and scheduling of non-attorney volunteers
(approximately 20 paralegals). Developed, updated, and produced specific training seminars and
materials for both groups and other agency programs related to low-income client population and
BCLS program needs. Participated in agency and community meetings regarding legal issues, .
rights and/or services by providing information that was clear, knowledgeable, and supported
with appropriate materials. Worked cooperatively with the Boulder County Bar Association,
Department of Social Services, and other agencies and organizations in developing strategies to
effectively, advocate for low-income populations. Demonstrated ability to handle high volume
caseload effectively and consistently (annually: referred approximately 600 cases to private bar
and opened 25 cases personally) while supen'ising administrative office personnel and tasks to
maintain and enhance effective operation of the program.

ADDITIONAL RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE; Boulder, Colorado . 1988 - 1990

LEGAL ASSISTANT

NATIONAL.WILDLIFE FEDERATION; Washington, D.C. 1985 - 1988
LEGAL ASSISTANT

ACHIEVEMENTS

TWIN PINE RANCH; Wheatland, Wyoming
FATHING RANCH, iron Mountain, Wyoming
RANCH HAND

NOMINATED BY THE BOULDER BAR ASSOCIATION AND THE 1994

BOULDER WOMEN'S BAR ASSOCIATION FOR THE COLORADO BAR

ASSOCIATION'S JACOB V. SCHAETZEL AWARD {demonslraleclcledicalion
to the development and delivery oflegal sei-vices to the poor)

JOFFREY BALLET 1963 - 1970

EDUCATION

GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY; Washington, D.C.
Legal Assistant Certificate

PRATT INSTITUTE: Brooklyn, NY.
Bachelor Industrial Design



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Cheryl Steinberg SLP Director 107,537 36.9% $39,706

Ruth Heintz Managing Attorney 107,537 9.2% $9,926

Geoff Ketcham Managing Attorney 102,268 9.2% $9,440

Candace Gebhart Staff Paralegal • 74,315 9.2% $6,860



JefTrcy A. Meyers

Commissioner

Deborib 0. Scheca

Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SVPPORTS AND SER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Eji. 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

wn-w.dh hs.nh.gov

April 24. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to exercise a renewal option and amend an existing contract with New Hampshire
Legal Assistance (Vendor #154648), 117 North. State Street. Concord. New Hampshire for the
continuation of Legal Services to eligible adults, age sixty (60) or older, by increasing the price
limitation by $182,802.77 from $ $396,955.69 to an amount not to exceed $579,758.46 and by
extending the contract completion date from June 30^ 2019 to September 30. 2020. effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. This agreement was originally approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on October 26, 20l6 (item #13), and subsequently amended on January-10.
2018 (item #15). 85% Federal Funds. 15%. General Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to" be available in the following account in State
Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 and SFY 2021 with the authority to adjust ericumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95^-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HNS:
ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS,'ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS, 85% FEDERAL,
15% GENERAL

Fiscal

Year
Class Class Title Job Number

L

Currerrt Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amourt

Revised Modified

Budget

2017 540-500382 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $104,471.25 $0 $104,471.25

2018 ' 540-500382 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $146,242.22 $0.00 $146,242.22
2019 540-500382 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $146,242.22 . $0.00 $146,242.22
2020. 540-500382 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $0.00 $146,242.22 $146,242.22
2021 540-500382 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $0.00 $36,560.55 $36,560.55

TOTALS $396,955.69 $182,802.77 $579,758.46



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to continue to provide legal services,
as outlined in Section 307 (11) (A) of the Older Americans Act. for adults age sixty (60) and older,
who are not on Medicaid, and demonstrate a need.

Legal services provided by the Contractor help older individuals secure and maintain their
independence as well as sustain their health and quality of life. Services include legal advice and
counseling to eligible individuals, litigation by attorneys, and paralegal services to address questions
and concerns that are civil in nature. Issues addressed may include, but are not limited to, consumer
concerns, family matters, housing issues, public assistance benefits, utility shul-offs, and problems
related to nursing home care or residential care services. Legal services also Include representation
at hearings when necessary.

I

If approved, this renewal request will assist the Department in ensuring the Contractor
continues to demonstrate positive outcome's related to the performance measures identified in the
initial scope of work approved by Governor and Council on October 26. 2016 (item #13).
Performance measures include;

•  Number of legal advice, counseling, and litigations activities;;
•  Number of legal representation activities provided at hearings or in court; and , ,
•  Ensuring public awareness though outreach and education.

The original contract was competitively bid.

As referenced in the Exhibit C-l, and revisions to General Provisions of the Contract are that
the Department reserves the right to extend cqntract sen/ices fpr up .to twp (2) additional years,
subject to the continued'availability "of funds. satisfactory performance of contracted services and
apprbvar from the Gbvernor'and Executi The Pbpirtment"exercised a; feriewal option to
extend services by nine (9) months, approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 10,
2018 (item #15). Through this request, the Department is exercising a second (2^*^) and final renewal
■option for the remaining fifteen (15) months: leaving no months remaining.

. Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, legal service,s provided
to low income elderly clients may be reduced or eliminated which could jeopardize their ability to
remain in their homes and communities. In addition, not approving this request rnay result in the
need for more-costly, long-term care services in traditional nursing homes or through community-
based care programs. "

Population and area to be served:. Statevyide, approximately 1,500 individuals wilj be served
from July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020.

Source of Funds: 85%. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
-Human Services; Administralion-for-Community .Living, Older Americans Act Title III - Grants for
Supportive Services, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.044 and Federal Award
Identification #17AANHT3SS and 15% General Funds.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

R^pectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparittient of Health and Hnmon Seruices' Mission is to join conimnnitics and families
in providing Opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Logal Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Legal Services Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Legal Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this
16 day of April. 2019, is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Slate" or "Department") and New Hampshire Legal Assistance
(hereinafter referred to as'"the Contractor"), a norvprofit corporation with a place of business at 117 North
State Street, Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
oh October 26. 2016, (Item #13). as amended on January 10. 2018 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the teitns and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the Slate and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3; the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to.
support continued delivery of these sen/ices.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2020

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$579,758.46

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Numl>er, to read:

603-271-9631

5. Delete Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements (6/2017) in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements (v5 10.09.18).

New Hompshire Legal Assistance Amendment f2
RFA-20l7-BEASr04-Legal-01-A02 Page 1 o(3 .



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

This amendrhent shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date ^ Name: h. Cc.n^hz^
Title: Z>/r^c/ipir^

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

^\\(^\ ̂ oiQ
Dafe ' Name: yW p(ySH>)

Acknovirledgerhent of Contractor's signature:

State of County of UVVf i [nOC IcT. on, before the undersigned officer,
personally appearea the person identified directly above, or salisfactorily proven to t)e the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Of.
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

» • "BRENOA G. KJRK. Notary Public
St^ of New HarrpsftirD

My Corrrrtnkm Dgitres September 17. ̂ 19

New Hampshire Legal Asslslanca Amendment #2
RFA-20i7.BeA$-04.Legal-01-A02 Page2of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Now Hampshiro Legal Assistance
RFA-20l7-BEAS'04-Leflal-01-A02

Amendment #2

Poge 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the descritjed meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than' authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Compuier Security Incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of.Commerce.

3.. "Confidential-Information" or "Confidential Data" means all'confidential information
disclosed by one party .to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Information. i

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection,-disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial •
Information (PFI), -Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other -downstream . user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that, potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption of denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the'processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the osvner's knowledge, instruction, or

• consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Usl update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Conloictorlniilats.
DHHS Informalion

Securtiy Roqulromonts
Pafleloffi Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
no! designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department'of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved,' by means of the State, to transmit) • will be considered an open
network and "not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Indh/idual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in. New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined'with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such^as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164,'promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Heafth and Human Services. ^

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has" the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

■ 160.1'03.^' ■

11. "Security Rule" shalf mean-the Security Standards. for the Protection of Electronic
' Protected Health Itiformation at 45 C.F'R.^ Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

■ hot secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute..

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract." Further, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute ayiolation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Infor^ response to a

vs. Last iipdaie 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Inlllsis.
DHHS Infofmallon

Security Requirements
Page 2 of 9 * Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has" agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
tJser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance, with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data, between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS.
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox of Google Cloud Storage, to transmit

. Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Losl update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contrador Initials.
OHHS InfomiBtJon.

Security Requirements
'PDBe3of9 . Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ, a virtual private networi< (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to ,
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

'11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have'30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form' it may exist, unless, otherwise required by-law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end; the'parties must;

A. Retention ' .
■ j

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This-physicaMocation requirement shall also apply-in the implementatipn of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security rnonitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confideritial information for contractor- provided systems.

3. ' The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must t)e in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systerhs, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 BdilbltK , Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K .

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor svill maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sul>-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and. will
obtain written certification, for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatioh. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for fviedia Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Corhmerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and'will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written, certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has l>een properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will l^e jointly
evaluated by the State and Contmctor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a

.  secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise^ specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

tV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the' DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follovrs;

1. The Contractor will maintaih proper security controls to protect Department
confidential 'lnformation collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

•  2. The Contractor will maintain, policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. LasI update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Conlractof Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. " If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. ; The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Departnient system access and. authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
•completed,and-signed by the Contractor and any applicable suthcpntractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) v4th.the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor vyill work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is. to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement, between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written. consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership meml^er within the Department.

11. Data.Security Breach Liability. In the event of any,security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from.the.Contractor.alLcosts of response.and recovery from

vs. Last update lorOd/18 Extvbll K Contrador Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements cA \ \^ \ \
Page 6 of 9 Date M ' 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and rnust in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R.' §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security, that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.

. Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to. maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response prdces's. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects , or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in . Section IV A. iabove.
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to.and being received by email-addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Lest update 10/09/18 ExhMK \ Contractor initials.
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 7 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

8. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door "locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times'when in transit, at rest, or vvhen
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

,  h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed, using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. ; understand that their user credentials (user name, and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End'Users-will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
-a third party application. • •. .

Contractor is responsible for ovei^sight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the .right tp .conduct-onsite,inspections to monitor .compliance, with this.
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements.provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and. Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING ,

The Contractor must, notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in

.  Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306., In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures rhust also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5.USJ update 10/09/16 ' ExMbitK Contractorlnftlals.
DHHS tnformolion

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPiivacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gpv

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 1(V09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Inhlals.
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9 Date. ^
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DrVISIONOFLONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

BlTRflAU OF ELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-385?

603-2? 1-9546 I-800-&5Z-3345 ExL 9546

Fax:603-27l-49l2 TDD Access: l-800-?35-2964
*rww.dhhs.nb.gov '

December 14. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human sen/ices, Division of Long Term Supports and
Services. Bureau of Elderly and Adults Services, to exercise a retroactive renewal option and amend
an existing contract with New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Vendor #154648), 117 North State Street.
Concord. New Hampshire, for the continuation of legal services to eligible adults, age sixty (60) or older
and to issue a legislatively appropriated rate increase for these services by increasing the price
limitation by $118,365.69 from $278,590.00 to an amount not to exceed $396,955.69. and by extending
the contract completion date from September 30. 2018 to June 30. 2019. effective retroactive to July
1, 2017 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original agreement was approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on October 26. 2016. Item #13. 85% Federal Funds and 15% General
Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2018
and 2019 with the authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office without Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05.95-48-481010-78720000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADM .ON AGING,

Fiscal

Year
Class Class Title

Job

Number

. Current

. Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017, 540 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $104.471 25 $0 $104,471.25

2018 540 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $139,295.00 $6,947.22 $146,242.22

2019 540 Social Service Contracts 48130310 $34,823.75 $111,418.47 $146,242.22

TOTALS $278,590.00 $118,365.69 $396,955.69

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive to July 1, 2017 because the New Hampshire Legislature
appropriated. In each year of the biennium (State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019), a one-time Increase of
up to five percent (5%). for the one-half hour rate, for legal services to eligible adults, age sixty (60) or
older, who meet the Title 111 Older Americans Act requirements.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2 --

Legal services provided assist with supporting older individuals to secure and maintain their
independence as well as their health and quality of life. Services, include legal advice and counseling
services to eligible Individuals, as well as litigation by attorneys and paralegals, to address questions
and concerns that are civil in nature. Issues addressed may include, but are not limited to. consumer
concerns; family matters; housing issues; public assistance benefits and utility shut-offs; and problems
related to nursing home care or residential care services. Legal Services also include representation at
hearings, when necessary.

The original contract was awarded on October 26. 2016 through a competitive bid process and
contains language in the Exhibit C-1. Revisions to. General Provisions, that reserves the Department's
right to renew the contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of
funds, satisfactory performance of contracted services and approval by the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Legislature's direction
to increase rates for the provision of legal services, and its Inclusion of funding in the current biennium
to support this increase, will be unfulfilled.. .

Area to be Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 15% General Funds and 85% Federal Funds from the United States
Department of Health and Human Services. Administration for Community Living. Older Americans Act
Title ill - Grants for Siupporlive Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.044 and
Federal Award Identification #17AANHT3SS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds wiW
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Approved b

lelloChristine L.

Director

. MeyersJe rey

mmissioner

The DeperlmenI of Health and Human Services' Mission is lo join communities and farrvSes
in providing opportuniiies for citizens lo achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
i^endmentf^t tothe
Legal Services Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Legal Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated
this 25®* day of October, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
af>d Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Legal
Assistance (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business
at 117 North State Street, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 26, 2016 (Item #13). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment '
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. .Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3,.the
Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council; arid

WHER,^S, the parties agree to increase the one-half hour service rate, extend the completion date by
nine (9) months, and increase the price limitation;

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the (Contract and. set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7, to read; June 30. 2019

2. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $118,365.69 from
$278,590.00 to $396,955.69

3.- Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E. Maria Reinemann. Esq., Director of Contracts and '
Procurerrtenl

4. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.10 to read: 603-271-9330

5. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Item #1 and replace with:

1. . The State shall pay the Contractor twenty-nine dollars and twenty-six cents ($29.26) per one-
half (1/2) hour in an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8 of the Form P-37
General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services.

6. Add Exhibit K DHHS Information Security Requirements

7. Add Attachment A-Amendment #1

New Hampshire Legal Amerxtment 01

RFA-2017-eEAS-044.eoal Page Id 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date
\->HQpr

;hristine Santaniello. Director
Division of LofK Term Supports and Services

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

/7lyln /h
Date Name: Cty ^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of titi) Countvof fe: on _ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity Indicated atx)ve.

K
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Kiy-lc ^ :
Name arid Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires; Rlnl'?

BRENOA G. Kmx. Nota^ PuOte '
Stats of Naw HampsNn)

%Commtsslon&9tr«9Sflo<Bn««rir. 2010

New Hampshiro LegaT Axslstance Amentfmeniffl

RFA.20l7eeAS-(K-Le8al Poa«2ol3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

The pVeceding Amendment, having tjeen reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date
4n

R
id bi

Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment svas approved b/the Gover^r.and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

RPA-2017-BEA&-044.ega<

Amendmenl *V

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
SOW. the Department's Confidential information Includes any and all Information owned or managed by the
State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which coltection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal taw or regulatbn. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information fPHI), Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI).
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confKJential
Information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Oe(>artment confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contract^ services. Minimum expectations Include:

2.1. Contractor shall not store or transfer data collected in connection with the servces rendered

under this Agreement outside of the United States. This includes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle, vrhere applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage andsecure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect. trar)smit, or
store Department conndentlal Information whereapplicable.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department conridential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when trartsmilted over public networks like the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.5. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to detect potential security events that can
' Mhipacl State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in
support of protecting Department confidenliatinfonmalion

2.7. Maintain a docurhenied breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or

suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
Stale of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incldenf in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Computer Security Incident

Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and TechrK)logy, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications wilt be sent to the foltowir^g email addresses;

2.7.1.1. DHHSChleflnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.aov

2.7.1.2. DHHSInfofmatlonSftcuritvOffice@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.8. If (he vendor will maintain any Confidential Information .on Its systems (or Its subcontractor systams),

the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or

contract lerminalion; and will obtain written certification for any State of Now Hampshire data destroyed

Pa^slofZ Dale.

6/2017 Ejrfilljit'K Contractor InWsb
DHHS Informatkxi

Sacwflty RoqulrerTwits 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

by the vendor or any subcontractors as a pad of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing Slate of New Hampshire data shall be
rerxlered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted starKlards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document and certify in writing at lime of the data destruction, and wiil provide written certification
to the Department upon request. The written certiricalion will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and the vendor

prior to destruction.

2.9. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
Slate of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, artd, monitoring complJanco to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will worX with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshireand
Department system access ar»d authorization policies and procedures, systems access fomns, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant fo45 CFR 160.103, the vendorwill
work with the Department lo sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The suivey will be completed annually, or an aftemate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unkr>owingiy, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from

the appropriele authorized data owner or leadership member wthin the Department.

6. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate
Ihe causes of the breach, promptly take measures lo prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and

- recovery from the breach, including but not limited to:'credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs,
associated with website and telephone call center services necessao' due to the breach.

6/M17 EitfiibUK ContrBCtor Inltlaia Liw^
OKHS IfitomaUon

Security Requtremenla I T I ij 11—)
Paoe 2 of 2 Date * ̂  / 7 i f (



Attachment A - Amendment #1

Attestation

r

For State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019. the New Hampshire Legislature appropriated a one-time
increase of up to five percent (5%) over the reimbursement rates in place on June 30, 2017 for
certain direct service providers. The increase of public funds is to be used exclusively for the
purpose of increasing either service units or wages paid to individuals providing services directly
to clients.

In recognition of the atx)ve, and as the authorized representative of the Contractor named
below. I certify that the Contractor named below will use the increase in funding exclusively to
increase the one-half hour rate for the administration of the services listed In Exhibit A - Scope
of Services, and that the Slate may request an audit of our records to confirm the same.

^  (
Name. Title, and Agency Name

Signature

/^/vA^7
Date



Jeffi^r.A. Mejen
CoomistiDoci

'M«uneo U. Rfu
Dinctorof Huimd

SanrisB*

STATE OF l^W HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HXJMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

BUREAU OFELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

IW PLEASANT OTREET. CONCORD. NH 03501-3867

G03-371-9305 l-800-35t-l88e ^

Fu:603-271-4G43 TOO Acccm: 1-800-736-S964 www.dhba.ab.CDv

September 14, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State'House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human,services. Bureau of Elderly and Adults
Senrices, to enter into a retroactive agreement with New Hampshire Legal Assistance
(Vendor #154648). 117 North State Street. Concord, New Hampshire for the provision of Legal
Services to adults age sixty (60) and older, in an amount not to exceed $278,590 effective
October 1, 2016, upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2018.
85% Federal Funding and 15% General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2017 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 upon .availability and
continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets, with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office without Governor and
Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-48^1010-78720000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS.
ADM ON AGING. GRANTS (85% Federal Funds; 15% General Funds)

Fiscal

Year
Class

Activity

Code
Class Title

Amount

2017 540 500382 Social Service Contracts $104,471.25

2018 540 500382 Sodal Service Contracts $139,295.00

2019 540 500382 Social Service Contracts $34,823.75

TOTAL: $278,590.00



Her Excelier>cy, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

^  EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive as a result of the need for the Department to prioritize the
completion of contracts for substance use disorder services that were time sensitive. The RFA
for legal services in this contract was delayed until after the start of State Fiscal Year 2017.

The purpose of this agreement Is for the provlsior) of legal services which will allow the
Departn>ent to assist elderly secure and maintain their independence, health and quality of life,
increase their financial literacy and help prevent identify theft and financial exploitation, while
remaining in their homes and communities. Services are provided to eligible adults, age sixty
(60) or older, who meet the Title III Older Americans Act requirements and have the greatest
economic and/or social needs.

The selected vendor shall provide services to eligible individuals who require legal
advice, counseling and litigation by attorneys and paralegals to address questions and
concerns of a civil nature related to consumer problems; family matters; healthcare; public or
private housing. Additionally, the selected vendor shall provide legal advice and counseling
relative to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program; public assistance benefrts and
utility shut-offs as well as problems related to nursing home care or residential care services.
Legal Services also Include representation at hearings or in court by attorneys, when
necessary.

A Request for Application was posted on the Department's website from July 12, 2016
to August 11. 2016. One (1) application was received. A team of Individuals with extensiye
program knowledge reviewed the application. The vendor was selected. The bid summary is
attached.

The agreement contains language that allows the Department the right to renew the
contracts for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance of contracted services and approval by Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request. Legal Services
provided to low income elderly clients may be reduced or eliminated which rnay jeopardize
their ability to remain in their homes and communities. This may result in requiring more costly
long-term care services in traditional nursing homes or through community based care
programs.

Area to l>e Served: Statewide

-SourceofFunds:

15% General Funds, and 85% Federal Funds from the United States Department of
Health and Human Services, Administration for Community Living. Older Americans Act Title
III - Grants for Supportive Services, Catalog of Federal Dornestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.044
and Federal Award Identification #17AANHT3SS.



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

ireen d. Ryan
Director of HumamServices

Approved by
Jd^ey A. Meyers

. Commissioner

Tha Departintnl oftiethh »ndHum»n S«rvic9t' MUsion is tojoin comtoonHkt and fsmilios in proYidjnjr
in opportunities for citizens la achien health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Uegal Services" (Title 111 Program)

RFA N«m»

RFA-2017«BEAS-04-LBgal

RFA Number

1.

2.

Bidder Name

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

0

3.^

5.o_

7. ̂

Reviewer Names

Pasa/Fall

Maximum

Point*

Actual
Point*

100 100

100 0

100 0

100 0

100 0

100 0

100 0

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Tracey Tarr. AdmininstratOf II

Rob Serry. Legal Coordinator,
OHHS, Ofc ol Pfogrem Support

Margaret Morriil.- Program
SpedaRst ill



Subject: Lcpfll Services fKFA.?Ol 7.HlLAS.Q4.Lepat^
FORM NLMBER P-37(venlon5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all or its eiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approval. Any inTormaiion (hat is pnvaie. conndeniial or proprietary must
be clearly idcniined 10 the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as rollo%>-s:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. identification:

I.I State Agency Name
Deparxment of Health end Human Services
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Manche.Mer. NH 03301

1.3 ConiraciorNamc

New Hampshire Legal Assistance
1.4 Contractor Addrc.<tS

117 Nonh Main Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603*206:2226

1.6 Account Number

05-95*48*411010-78720000

1.7 Completion Date

September 30. 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$278,590

1.9 Contracting OfTiccr for Stale Agency •

Erie.

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number

955?

1.II ContractorSigrtatufc 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Lyhhji.(^- PArWev"

On (>efQrc (hp undersigned officer, personally appeared the person ideniiricd in block 1. 12. or satisfactorily
proven lobe the person u-hosc name Is signed in block I.I i. and acknowledged thai s/he executed-this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. I

I.U.I Signature of Notary Public or Jtmice of the Peace

jScal

BRaSAUQMtfT aouyMfe

'1I.-IQ91

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ^ /- r* • i J

6reo/l« I-Grunt", M"!ini^.t<■«h|^^ tiinA-Yf, Gntor-i.
1.14 State A enc)

the1.16 Approv

By:

gnaiurc 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

:  Date: rff HuhtflFl
.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (ifappllcabUl

Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and £.tccutionl'/i/applicoble)Approval by (he Attorney c

1.18 Approval by the Governor K)aEKecutiveCou

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Siaic ofNew Hnmpshirc. aciing
chrough thcBgcncy idcniificd inblcxk 1.1 ("Siaie*")-€'>gagcs
comracior ideniified In block 1.3 ("Contrecior^) lo perform,
and ihc Coniracior shall perform, ihe work or sale of goods, or
boih. identined and more particularly described in the enached

• EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{"Services'").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrccntcnt to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable.'lhis Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr. shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unkss no such approval is required, in which ease
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").

3.2 Ifihe Cbniractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the F.ffeciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the

• Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effceiive: the State shall have no liability to the

Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
thc Coniractor for any costs incurred or Sc.rviccs performed.
Contractor must complete all-Scrviccs by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.,
Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary: all obligations of the State hcrcundcr. including,
without limiiation. the continuance of payments hercunder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and In no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hcreundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds, (nihe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifcver. and shall
have the right to icrminaie this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractornoiiccof such termination. The State
shall not be required lo transfer funds from any other aecoum
10 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
. payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 0 which is incofporaied herein by reference.
5.2 The. payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement lo the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature irKurred by the Contractor in the
performance hcreof.'and shall be the only end the complete,
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract
price. .
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
oiherwi.sc payable to the Contractor under this Agreemeni -
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through R$A 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hcreundcr, exceed Ihc Price Limiiation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In cnnncction with the performance of the Services, the '
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulaiiohs.
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids ai^ services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information Prom, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term qifthis Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate.against employees or applicnnis for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual oricnution. or national origin and will take
affirmattVc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Coniractor shall comply with all the
provisions of F.xecutive Order No. 11246 CEqual
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of ihc United Stales Oepanmeni of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any hiles, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement thesc.regulaiions. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he Suic or United Stales access to. any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance .wiih all rules, regulaiioos and orders,
and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this.ASfcc*"^"'-

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Coniractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. 'ITtc Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Coniractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontraciof or.oihcr person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cffqn to
pcrtorm the Services lo hire, any person who is a Stale
employee or officiaL who is maitrially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

or4
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Agreement. This provision shall sur\'jvc termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting orncerspccilictJ in bJoch 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's rcpreseniaiive. in the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation ofihis Agreement,
the Contracting OO'icer's decision shall be ftna) for the State.

8. EVENT OF default/remedies.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
ConirBCior shall constitute an event of default hereundcr
("Event of Ocfoult"): •
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiisfaciorily or on
'schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder: and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, of more, or all. of the roilowing actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Dcfaulrand requiring ii to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser spcciricoiion of lime, ihiny (30)
days from the date ofthe notice: and ifihe Event of Defoult is
not timely rcrhcdied, terminate this Agreement elTcctivc two
(2) days after giving the Contractor, notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default artd suspending all payments to be made under this
Agrocmcnt and ordering that (he portion of the contract price
which vvould'otherwise accrue'to the Contractor during the
period from' the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines (hat (he Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2J set olTagainst'any other obligations (he State may owe to
the Conifocior any damages the State sofrcrs by reason of any
Evcniof Default; and/or

8.2.4 (itai the Agreement as brieachcd and pursue arty of its
remedies at law or in equity, or bbih.

9. data/access/co.nfidentiality/
preservation.

9.1 as used in this Agreement, the word "data'shall mean all
inrormaiion and things developed or <rt>iainetl during ihc
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement,' including, but ooi limited to,-all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surv'cys. maps, charts, sound recordings, video
fccofdings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic rtprtscniaiions. computer programs, computer •
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers,.end documents,
all whcihcr finished or unfinished.
9.2 All daia'and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose -
uridcr this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and ,
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentialiiy ofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdata
requires prior wTiiicn approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer. not later than fificcn (15) days after the date of
icrminatioh. a report ("Termination ReporT') describing in
detail all Services performed, and the conireci price earned, to
and including the date of icnrninaiion. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in

the performance of this Agreement (he Contrecior is in all
respects an indepcndcni contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee ofthe State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officefs, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' comptcnsation
or other emoluments provided by the State to ils employees.

12. ASSlCNfVlENT/DELECATiON/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Coniracior shall not assign, or otherwisc'irunsfcr any
interest in this Agrccrhcnl without the prior wrincn notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent ofthe State."

\y INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers end
employeeSi from and against any and all losses suffered by (he
State, Us officers and employees, and any and all claims; v. ;
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTicers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the

Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the .
sovereign immunity.of the Statc..which.imm.uaily/isJ!iercby.
reserved co the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of thi.s Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole c.xpcnse. obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive gcncraMiabiliiy insurance against all
claims ofbodiiy injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl,000.(X)Opcr occurrence and $2,000,000 .
aggregate; and V
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amouni not
less than 80*/» ofthe whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall
be On policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNcw
Hampshire.
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14.) The Contractor shall furnish to ihc ConiraciingOITicer
ideniined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceninc&ic(s)
ofinsurarKc for all insuraitce required under this Agreement.
Coniracior shall also fumish to the Contracting Ofncer
idemir>cd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenificatcfs) of
insurance for all rcne%val(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thiny (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtiricaie(s) uf
insurance and any renewals thereof shall.be attached and ere
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceriincaicfs) of
insurance shall corttain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OfHcer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior ufillen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
ccniftes end warrants thai ilw Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers 'Compensation").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281'A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities vvhich the person proposes to .
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contrecior shall
fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers" Compensation in the
maniKT described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewol(s) thereof, which shall be atiachcd.and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The Stale shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers" Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contricior. or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, vs'hich might
arise under applicable State of Nesv Hampshire Workers"
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement. -

U. waiver of breach. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be dcctned a waiver of its rights with regard to thai iEvent of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No.express
failure to enforce any Event of Default s^ll be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State tu enforce each and all uf the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event ol Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE- Any notice by a pany hereto to other pany
shall be deemed to havebecnduly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail; postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Posi Office addressed to the panies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. Herein.

16. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emcrxled.
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendmcni. waiver ordischvgc by Ihc Governor-and
Executive Council of the State of New 1 Campshirc unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New I lampshire. and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
inicni. and no rule of construction shall be applied against or

in favor ofany pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be

construed to confer any such bcrKfit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc-for reference purposes only, and the words contained ,
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modi^'. amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in Ihc attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. in the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary' to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force' and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterpans. each of which shall
be deemed an.original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between, the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understanding.* relating hcicio.
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Nbw Hampshiro Department of Heahh and Human Services
Legal Services

Eihibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will

provide to persons with limited English proriclency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire

General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services described

herein, the Slate Agency has the right to modify Service priorites and expenditure

requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Population
2.i;i. The Contractor shall provide Legal Services, pursuant to the Older-Americans Act Title-

III Services/Programs httD:/Awww.aoa.aov/AoA DroQrams/OAAitoaa.a'3px#t3" to
individuals who reside in independent fiving settings and who meet the following
eli^bility criteria: .

<2.1.1.1. Individuals who are not already receiving the same or similar services through one

of Department's Medicaid Waiver Programs, who are eligible for other Nh Medicaid

services; or ' • '

2.1.1.2. individuals wt>o are receivir^ the same or sirniJar services through the Veterans'

Administration.

2.1.1.3. Individuals age 60 and older with the most economic or social needs as described
in the Older Americans Act Title (II Services (Older Americans Act of 1965. as

. amended through P.L. 1'14-144. Enacted AprU 19. 2006 (Link attached;
htto:/rivww.aoa.QOv/AoA oroofafris/OAA/oaa fulLasoO Toct 53957659):

2.1.1.3.1. TKIe III A - Section 305.(a)(2)(E);

2.1.1.3.2. Title III B • Supportive Services;

2.1.1.4. NH Administrative Rule He-E 502 (Link attached:

httD.7/www.QencQurt.5tate.nh.us/njles/state aoenciesnie-eSOQjhtml)

2.2. Area Served

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible clients statewide.

2.3. Service Descriptions

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide legal ̂ vice. counseling and (UIgation by attorneys and
paralegals to address questions and concerns of a civil nature related to:

2.3.1.1. Consumer problems;

2.3.1.2. Family matters;

2.3.1.3. Heallhcare;

2.3.1.4. Public/private housing:

2.3.1.5. The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program:

New HsmpUws Legal Services ConUactore Ir^b:
PagelofS Oaie:_3Li3///^



N«w Hampshiro Oopartmont of Health and Human Services
Legal Sorvicea

Exhibit A

2.3.1.6. Public assistance benefits and utility shut-oHs; and

2.3.1.7; Problems related to nursing home care or residential care services.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide legal representation at hearings or in court by attorneys,
when necessary.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall provide statewide telephone acce'ss through a toll>free number.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall Increase the public's awareness of this service by:

2.3.4.1. Performing community outreach and education; and

2.3.4.2. Providing materials available as written or electronic to increase individuals'

awareness of their legal rights artd of. available legal services.

2.3.5. The Contractor may provide services to nursing home residertts or individuals living in

a residential care setting.

2.4. Cllont Access to Services

2.4.1. individuals access services described in this contract through the following ways;

2.4.1.1. Client directly applies for or requests services:

2.4.1.1.1. The Contractor shall determine eligibility for these services in accordance

with the rules and requlrenrtents of Title III Services. The Contractor shall

determine eligibility of the individual and ̂ vide written notice of eligibility

within forty^five (45) days from the date eligibility was determined, indicate

what services are to be provided, at what frequency and indicate the

beginning and end dates for the Individuars period of eligibility.

2.4.1.2. Client referred by Adult Protedion Services (APS)

htlD:f/www.ncea.aoa.Qov/Stoo Abuse/Partr>ers/APS/index.aSDx:

2.4.1.2.1. In the event that an ir>diyidual has been referred to'the Contractor by APS.

the Contractor shall rx}l lake an app6cation, determine or re-delermine the

individuars.eligibility, or issue eligibSity notifrcations. in accordance with the
NH Administrative Rules He-G 502

httD://www.Qencourt.state.nh.us/rules/stale aQencies/he-eSOO.hlml.

3. Staffing:

3.1. The Ccmtractor shall adhere to the following staffing requirements:'

' 3.1.1. Maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions,

requirements, roles and duties in a timely fashion for the number of clients arxl

geographic area as identified in this Agreement.

3.1.2. Verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate training, education,
experience and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities of their respediv'e positions.

This includes keepir>g up-to*dale personnel and training records and docurnentation of
all individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications.

3.1.3. Develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and submit the plan. In writing, to the

Department within thirty (30) days of approval of the Contract Agreement. The plan

Shan Indude but not be limited to;

N«w HwtjpuweLeqilScrviM* Con\j»cXontr{eMii:^:0^_f^.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Legal Services

Exhibit A

3.t The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel or

other personnel during the period of this Agreement;

3.1.3.2. A descriptjon of how addit'ronal staff resources will be allocated to support this

Agreement in the evertt of inability to meet any performance standard;

3.1.3.3. A description of time frarnes necessary for obtaining staff replacements;

3.1.3.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely manner, staff

replacements/addllions with comparable experience; and

3.1.3.5. The method of bringing staff replacements/additions up-to-date regarding this
Agreement.

4. Reporting

4.1. Reporting Roqulromonts

4.1.1. The Contractor shall complete and submit quarterly reports on a pre-defined electronic

form supplied by the Department. The report must be submitted by the 15" of the
month following the quarter end date. Tfw data win include, but r>ot be limited to the

following: - • > * .
4.1:1.1'. Expenses by program service provtdedi Service is defined as Legal Services.

4.1.1.2. Revenue by program service provided, by furxJing source;
4.1.1.3. Actual Units served by.program service provided, by furiding source;
4.1.1.4. Number of uiidupilcated clients served by service provided, by funding source;

4.1.1.5. Number of Tibe III clients served with non-BEAS funds:

.4.1.1.6. Unmet need/waiting list; and

4.1.1.7. Lengths of time clients are on a waiting list.

4.2. Sorvico Delivery Verification

4.2.1. -The Contractor-Shall submit-Service-Deliyery-Verification reports for the following

required performance measures:

4.2.1.1. Quality and Appropriateness:

4.2.1.1.1. .Service Records

4.2.1.1.1.1. The number and perceniage qf individuate for whom a rcpon lo Adult
Protection Services was made.

4.2.1.1.2. Experience

4.2.1.1.2.1. The number and perceniage of individuals surveyed (via telephone,

mail, e-mail, or face-to-face) who report their experiences with tt\eir

services aixj providers have been satisfactory or better.

4.2.1.1.2.2. The contractor will Indicate the reason(s) why:
4.2.1.1.2.2.1. Applteanls were referred lo Adult Protection Services; and

4.2.1.1.2.2.2. The number and percentage of individuals surveyed who

reported their experiences with their, services were not
satisfactory or better.

. 4.2.1.1.2.3. The Contractor shall describe the quality improvement activityfies) to

be Initiated to address identified'concerns about the quality of services.

NrN Hamptnira Leg»l S«rvX«> Comriqoia InKila: i .i
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4.2.1.t.3. ServiceDeliverv

4.2.1.1.3.1. The number of open cases at the end of each reporting period;

4.2.1.1.3.2. The Contractor wiii-indicale the reason(s) applicants did not receive

their planned services; and

4.2.1.1.3.3. The Contractor will doscrit>e the quality improvement act)viJy(les) to be

initiated to address identified concerns about service delivery.

5. Client Fees and Donations

5.1. Titfo 111 Sorvicoa .

5.1.1. Wrth the exception of Subsection 5.2.1.1. of this Agreement below. NH Administrative
Rule He*E 502.12 alloyvs Title III contractors to ask individuals receiving services for a

voluntary donation towards the cost of the service and provides guidance for
requesting donations. The donation is to be purely voluntary, and r>o orw can be

refused services if they .are unable or unwilling to donate.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall report the total amount of collected donations on the quarterly
report a'nd maBfemail to:

Department of Pinartce
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

6.2. Adult Protection Services (APS)
♦

5.2.1. PursuanttoRSA iei-P:42et8eq..
ht1o://wvww.aenc6urt gtate.nh.us/rsa/htmlfNHTOC/NHTOC-XII'161-F.htrn. BEAS

provides protection services to incapacitated adults to prevent and/or ameliorate

neglect, abuse or exploitation. When BEAS determines that an Individual needs
.protection services as described In the Adult Protection Program NH Administrative
Rule He-E 700. httP'JAvww.Qencourt.state nh us/mles/about rules/Hstaoencies.htm.

'  the Contractor agrees that the payment received from BEAS for the specified services
Is payment in full for those services and the provider agrees to refrain from making
any attempt to secure additional reimbursement of any type from the Individual for
those services.

5.2.1.1. The Contractor providing Title III services may r>ot cfiarge fees or ask for donations
from cficnls referred by the Departmcnrs Adult Protection Services (APS) Program
as long as these Mividuals remain active recipients of adult protection services as.
verified by Adult Protection Services staff.

6. Adult Protection Services (APS)

6.1. The Contractor shall report suspected abuse, neglect, self-neglect, and/or exploitation of ,
Incapacitated adults as required by RSA 161 -F; 48 of the Adult Protection law.

L P
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'  6.2. The Conlractor shall make a good faith effort to assure the provision of some level of services

to those persons who the Department refers to the Contractor and kJentirtes the client in need

of protection services.

7. E'Studio Electronic Information System

7.1. The Contractor shall be required to use the Department's E-Studio electroruc irtformation

system. E-Studio is BEAS' primary vehicle for uploading Important Information concerning

t)me>senshive annourtcemenis. policy releases, admirvstrative rule adoptions and other qitical
Information.

7.2. The Contractor shall identify all key personnel who will need E-Studio accounts to ensure that

information from the Department can be shared with necessary agency staff. There Is no cost

to the Contractor for the Department to create an E-Studio account and no limit on the number
.  of staff an agency identifies to have access to E-Studlo.

7.3. The Contractor shall ensure their E-Studio accounl(s) are kept current and that the Department

•  is notified vwtien a staff member is no longer working in the program so.his/her account can be

terminated.

6. Criminal Background and Adult Protection Services Registry Checks

8.1. The Contractor's staff members or volunteers, who wiii be Interacting with or providing hands-
on care to Individuais receiving services, are required to complete a B^S State Registry check
prior to providing serv'jcej; in accordance with the requirement of RSA 16t«F: 49

fhtto://QencQurt.state.nh.us/rsa/htmi/XII/l61-F/16l-F-49.htmi.

6.2. The Contractor shaD conduct a New Hampshire Criminal Records background check on all

agency staff as well as prospective employees or volunteers, funded under this contract, which
may have client contact. ■* •

8.3. The Conlractor. which is licensed, certified or funded by'the Department, shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49. which require the submission of the r\ame8 of prospective
employees .who may have dieni contact, for review against the State Adutt Protection Services
Registry.

9. Grievance and Appeals
9.1. The Contractor shall maintain a system for tracking; resolving and reportirtg client complaints

regarding its services, processes, procedures and staff.

9.2. The Contractor shall develop a grievance process. Any grievances filed are to be available to
the Department upon request At a minimum the process shaB include the foliowing:
9.2.1. .Client name:
9.2.2. Type of wrvice:
9.2.3. Date of written grievance:

'  9.2.4. Nature/subject of the grievance;

t
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9.2.5. Who in the agency reconsiders agency decisions;

9.2.6. What are (he issues that can be addressed in the grievance process; and

9.2.7. How consumers are informed of their right to appeal or file grievances.

lO.Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

10.1. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality services un^r this contract by prosriding
culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

10.1.1. Assess the ethnic/cuitural needs, resources and assets of their community.

10.1.2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with
corttumers with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment or to

those with disabilities.

10.1.3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of minimal English skills with
interpretation services.

10.1.4. Offer clients a forum through which they have the opportunity to provide feedback to
the Contractor regarding cultural and linguistic issues that may require a response.

10.1.5. When feasible and appropriate, identify comniuncalion access needs for clients who
may be deaf or hard of hearing and/or have vision or speech impairment arxf develop
an individual cornmunication plan for clients to receive services.

H.WaltLists

11.1. The Contractor shall provide all services covered by'this contract to the extent that funds, staff
3r>d/or resources for this purpose are available.

11.2. The Contractor shall maintain a wait list In accordance with the NH Administrative Rule He-E

502. htlp://www.aencQurt.state.nh.us/fules/state aoenciesffie-eSOQ.html. when funding or

resources are not availabie to provide the requested services. A wait list includes at a

minimum:

11.2.1.1. The Individual's full name and date of birOi:

11.2.1.2. The name of the service being requested;

11.2.1.3. The date upon which the Individual applied for services which shall be the dale
the application was received by the Contractor or BEAS;

11.2.1.4. Thetarget date of implementing the services based on the communication
between the individual and the Department/Contractor;

11.2.1.5. The date upon which the Individual's name was placed oo the wait list shall be
the date of the Notice of Decision in which the individual was determined
eligible for Title ill services;.

11.2.1.6. The individual's assigned priority on the watt list, determined in accordance
with Subsection 16.3 below of this Agreement;

11.2.1.7.' A brief description of the IndWdual's circumstances and the services he or she
needs.

lmP
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11:3. The Contractor shall prioritize each individuars standing on the wait list by determining the

individuars urgency of rrced in the following order;

11.3.1. Individual is in an institutional setting or is at risk of being admitted to or discharged
from an Institutional setting;

11.3.2. Oeciining mental or physical health of the caregiver.

11.3.3. Declining mental or physical health of the individual;

11.3.4. individual has no respite services while living with a caregiver

11.3.5. Length of time on the wait list:

11.3.6. When two (2) or more individuals on the wait list have been assign^ the same '
service priority, the individual served Tirst will be the one with the earnest application

date;

11.3.7. Individuals who are being served under Aduft Protection Services RSA 161-F; 42-57

shall be given priority status on the waitlist and in accordance with He-E 501.14 (0
'  . and Me-E 502.13; > ■

11.3.6. Individuals with adult protection needs in accordance with RSA t6l-F: 42-57 shall t>e

exempt from the wait list.

11.4. When an individual is placed on (he wait list, the Contractor shall notify the individual in writing.

11.5. The Contractor shall maintain the wait list for the length of the contract period and make it

available to the Department upon request.

12. Notice of Failure to meet Service Obligations

12.1. In .the event that the Contractor for any reason is unable to meet any service obligations prior to

the cbmpletiori dateV the'Contractor shall provide written rwtice'of such'inabllity at least ninety

(90) days prior and shall mail it to;

Bureau Director

^  Bureau of Elderly ar)d Adult-Services
129 Plcasan!_Slreet

Concord. NH 03301

12.2. Examples of failure to meet service obligations may include., but are not limited to;

12.2.t. Reducing hours of operstion

. ' 12.2.2. Changing a geographic service area

12.2.3. Closing or openir^g a site

12.3. The written notification shall include the foHowIng:

12.3.1. The reasons for the inability to deliver services:

12.3.2. How service recipients and (he community will be irnpacled;

■  12.3.3. How service recipients and the community will be notiHed; and .

12.3.4. The Contractor's plan to transition clients into other services or refer the clients to
other agencies.
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12.4. The Contractor shall maintain a plan that addresses the present and future needs of clients

receiving services in the event that:

12.4.1. Service(s) are terminated or planned to be terminated prior to the termination date of

the oonlract;

12.4.2. The contract is terminated or is planned to be terminated prior to the termination date

of the contract by the Contractor or the State:

12.4.3. The Contractor terminates a services or services for any reason;

12.4.4. The Contractor cannot carry out all or a portion of the services terms or conditions

outlined in the contract or sub-contracts.

13.Transition Process

1 J.l. The Contractor shall have a transition process for cfients in the event that they may be

transitioned between the Department's contracted providers and shall submit their written

transition process to the Department within thirty (30) days of approval of the Contract

Agreement. The proce.ss shall ensure;

13.1.1. Uninterrupted delivery of services lor dienls: .

13.1.2. A meth^ of notifying dients and/or the community about the transition. A staff
member shaO be. available to address questions about the transition.

14.Cofnpl)ancewlth Laws and Regulations

14.1. The Contractor shall provide services and administration of the program in accordance with the
applicable federal and stale laws and Title III rules! policies and regulations adopted by the .

Department currently in effect.-and as they may be adopted or arnended during the contract

period.

14.2. The Comractor shall be a Legal Services Corporation as derined in Section 307 (a) (11) of the
Older Americans Act httD:/Avww.aoa.Qov/AoA oroorams/OAA/oaa futl.asoO ToelS39576S9. If

the Contractor is not a Legal Services Corporation, then it must coordinate its services whh
exisb'ng Legal Services Corporation projects in order to concentrate the use of funds to serve
indh/iduats with the greatest need.

New mrnpHwe L#o»l S«n4c« ConU«toaWtj!tti;'£JjJ^i '
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Stale shall pay the Contrador twenty seven dollars and eighty seven cents ($27.87) per one-
hall hour In an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P-37, Block 1.8. for the

services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. Payment for services shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual hours worked only.

3. The Contractor shall be available to provide sarvtces identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, as
needed.

4. The numt>cr of hours worked per year shall not exceed twenty five hundred (2500) hours.

5. Payment for services shall be processed as follows:

5.1 The Contractor shall submit a monthly invoice for reimbursement of adual hours worked
durirtg the month, for a total'of twelve (12) invoices per year. The Slate shall make payment
to the Contrador within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contrador services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

5.2 Invoices described in Exhibit B. Method and Condition Precedent to Payment. Sedion 5.1.
ar\d reports Idenliried in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 9. Reporting Requirements
must be sutimltted to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Data Management Unit
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Section 5. , . .

7. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days after the Contrad ends.
Failure to submit (he Invoice and accompanying documentation could result In nonpayment.

8. NotwithstarxJing anything to the contrary herein, the Contrador agrees that fundif>g under this
• • Contrad may-be-withheldr-in-'whole-of-in-part,-in the-event-of-i>oncompliance.with.any State or

Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said services have not
been compteled in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Now Himpthiro Logal Milrttnce EfcT*®*! B ConUacto* Iriliab —
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by1t^ Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Irxlividuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

t. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibilKy delerminabon shall t>e made in accordance with applicable federal and
state taws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shatl be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by,
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each redt^ent of services hereunder, which fite shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other informab'on as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearfngs: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants ar>d agrees that all applicants (or services shall be permitted to fill out
an appiicalton form and that each'applicant or re-appGcant shall be informed of his/her right to a (air,
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Corttrad to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any SubtContractor or
the Slate in order to influence the performance of the Scope of VVork detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may term'inate IHs Contract and any sub-contract or-sut>-a9reement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kirid were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anythir>g to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or ur>derstanding. it is ei^jressty understood and agreed by the parties
hereto.'that no payments will be made hereunder to reirriburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual pr'ior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor lor any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a delenmination that the Ind'n/iduai is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contaihed shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and r>ecessarY to assure the quality of. such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to inefigible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Ftnaf'
Expenditure Report hereunder. t^ Department shall determine that the Contractor has used

■  payments hereunder to reimburse items of cx^nse other than such coats, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party fundefs. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates (or payment hereunder." in which eyerit new rates shall be established:'
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs:

( M
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■  7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contraaor agrees to
reimburse the.Dcpartment for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
.provided to any indtviduai who is found by'the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the followir>g records during the Coruroct Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Coniractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during (he Contract Period, said records to be
maintairied in accordance with accounting procedures arxt practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs 8r>d expenses, and which are acceptable to (he Departrhent. and
to Include, without lirhitation. an ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions ar>d orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions. labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department '

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall IrKlude an records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determir>e eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and aO invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
' payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulatk)ns. the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9.' Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit.to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordanceiwith the provision of

. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
• Profil Organizations* and the provtsions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activilies and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to finandal compliance audits.
.9.1j Audit and.Review:.Ourtng.the.term.of.thls.Contract and the.period for retention.hereurider.-.the

'Department, the United States D'epartment of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for-purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to arxl not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
urxterstood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held tiat>le for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, a!) payments made under the
Contract to which exception has t>oen taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
excepliort-

10. Confidentlaltty of Records: All information, reports, and records mainia'ined hereurtder or coliected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall t>e confidential and shall r>ot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant'to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information..disclosure may be made to
public offidais requiring such information in connection with their offldal duties and for. purposes

•directly connected to (he administralion of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a redpient for any purposc not
directly connected with tt>e administration.of ttNe Department or the Contractor's rcsporvsibltiUes with
respect to purchased services hereurtder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient his
attorney or guardian. *
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
'  the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: the Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expense# incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed saiisfaclory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hcreunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department. {

11.2. Final Re'port: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days ofter the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and ̂ all
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the.price limitation
hereundcr. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the er>d of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of tt>e Contract) shall terminate, provided howcvier. that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discrietion. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Cfodlts: All-documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement

13.1.' The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of Now Hampshire and/or such other funding swrces as were available or
required, e^g.. the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services..

14. Prior Approval and Copyright OwT>or8hlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS v^ll retain copyright ownership for any and all original rhalerials
produced. Including, but nol.limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officef or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all limes comply with the terms and • •
conditions of each such Bcense or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply vriih all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Off»ce of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). H It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipierit receives $25,000 or more, and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Ced/ftcation Form to the
OCR. certifying thai its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving (ess than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the arr^ount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cenifying it is not required to submit or maihtain art EEOP. Non*
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to (he OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/rwww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficioncy (LEP); As darificd by Executive Order 13166. improving Access to
Services for persons with Umitcd English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, rtational origin
discrimination includes dtscriminalion oo the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure

compliance with the Omnibus Crime Contrisl and Safe Streets Ad of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable sleps to ensure that LEP persons have
mearKngful access to its programs. <

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistloblowor Protections: The
following shall apply lo af contracts that exceed the Simplified AcquisHion Threshold as defined in 48
CFRltOl (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Reouirement To Inform Employees of

Whistieblgwer Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract ar>d employees working on this contract will t>e subject to the whistleblower rights
and rii^edies In the pilot program on'Contrador employee whistleblower protections established. al
4t U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908. ^

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in wrilirig. in the predomlnant'language of the workforce,
of employee whistiebiower rights and proledions under 4i U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal AcquisHion Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in ail
subcontracts' over the s'implifted acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes lhat the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors wHh '
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or.functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountattilHy for the funct)on(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluale the. subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that spedfie's activities and reporting
respor>slt>ilHies of the subcontrador and provides for revoking the delegation or impo^g sandions if
(he subcontradoris performance isnot adequate. Subcontradors are subjed to the, same contractual
conditions'as the'Conlrador and the Contrador is responsible to ensure subcontractor complianco
with those cond'rtions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontrador. the Cpr^tractor shall (to the following;
19:1. Evaluate the prospective sut>contr8c(or's ability to perform the activities, t>efore delegating

the fundion ■

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontrador that specifies activities and reporting .
responsltriliiles and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontrador's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ExnlDlt C-SfMdal Proviiions Contraaor Inititfs
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiendes or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of'expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance ̂ th cost ar>d accounting principles established in accordance
with state ar>d federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health arid Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Finandal Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing tfte finandal
activities of contractor agendes which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the term's and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity delermin^ by the Department and specified in Exhibit 6 of the
CorUract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to lime. •

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Admlnislrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSACh 541-A. for the purpose of implementing Slate ofNH and
federal regulabons promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not.eupplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

I rviPExhibit C - Sp«ci«i Pfowistoni comnaor iniiiait. ' ''■
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVtStONS

1. Sobparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Condltionai Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwrthstsnding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all oSllgations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
ir>cludir>g any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any slate or federal legislative or executive action thai reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modines the appropriation or availabinty of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no. event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contraclor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accounl(s) identified In block 1.6, of the General Provisions, Accouni Number, or any other
account. In (he event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions ol this contract. Teiminalion. is amended by adding the
foHowing language;

10.1 The Stale rnay terminate the Agreement al any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event-of early lerminatioo, the Contraclor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
•  termination, develop and submllcto the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement ar>d establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contraclor shall fully cooperate with the State arid shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but rx)t iimited -lb. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ortgoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that scorices under the Agrcen^ent. induding but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by ariother entity
induding contracted providers or the State, the Contractor-shaft provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the TransUion Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the tiansKlon. The Contractor shall indude the proposed communicalions in its
TransKion Plan submitted to the State as descrit>ed above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued availabBity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive CourKal.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^90. TiUe V. Subtitle D;
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certincalion:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certificalion is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amerced and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21891). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), priorlo award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. .Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-granlees and sub-conlractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fisca! year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, the certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed svhen the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government vwde suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this fonn should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies thaiil will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful mariufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controtled substance is prohibited in the grantee s
woikplace and spedfying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establlshlrig an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dar\gers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a dnjg-free sworkplacc;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occumng in the workplace;
1.3.. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vlolallon of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calertdar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in vwrting. within tcn calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraphM .4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such com^tion.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nolice. including position title, to every granl
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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Exhibit 0

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identjfication number(s) of each affected grant:

1.6. Taking one o( the foBowtng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving rvjtice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, M^th respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personr>el action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
emended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pariidpale satisfactorily in e drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate-agency; -

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3. 1.4. l.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the pcrfonnar>ce of work dorre in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are riot identified here.

Contractor Name:

Lifnut^
Dale Name; L^kri4.

Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTtnCATION REGAROtNG LOBBYiNG

The Contractor idenlirted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply w<th the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
'31 U.S.C. 1352. and turther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 ol the General Provisions execute ihe foUowing Ceriirication:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assislance lo Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforccmenl Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Granl Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program ur»der Title XIX
•Community Services Slock Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of (he undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer"or employee of any age/>cy. a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of.a Member of Congress in,
connection with the awarding of any Federal contracl. continuation, renewal, amcndmenl. or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (ar>d by specific mention

• sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or emptoyee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contracl. grant; loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciflc.mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Idenlified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language ol this certification be included in the award
document for sub-av«ards at all tiers (including subcontracts. sul>-grants. and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aU sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This ccrtification Is a material representation of fad upon which reBance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificalion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to We the required
ccrtification shall be sutjject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. •

Contractor Name:

0^^ . Name:
Title: o'»rec^'

EiWex E - Certftc*ti«r ReptnJnfl Lobbying ConWder Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSISIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor Identifjed In Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12W9 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspertsion. and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to tiave the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folIOMng
Ccrtificatipn;

INSTRUCTIONS POR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submittir>g this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will rtot necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant ̂ atl submit an
' explanation of why il cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be '
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS).
deiemtination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
vitten DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the proispectlve
primary participant kr>owing!y rendered, an erroneous certification.- In addition to other remedies
availabte to the'Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction tor cause or default.

4. The prospective prirnaty participant shaU provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to. -
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary partidpam learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

•j

5. , the terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.* 'suspended;' 'Ineligible.* 'lower lieriCovcrcd .
transaction.' 'participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered Iransacbon.* 'principal.' 'proposal.' and

. Voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
■Covera^ sections of-the rules implementing Executive Order-12549; 45.CFR Part 76..See the- . .
anached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contrad) that, should-thc
proposed covered ir^saction be entered into, it shall not knowngly enter into any.lower tier.covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared irteligible. or voluntarily excluded
from ^rticipation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHhtS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal lhat.il will include the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension,.Ineligibility and Volunlary.Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHMS, without nvjdification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all soBcitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partidpanl in a covered transadion may rely upon a certification of a prospedive partidpant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, iricligible. or involuntarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by vMhich it determines the eligibility of its prirtdpals. £ach
partidpanl may, but is not^required to, check the Nonprocurement Ust (of exduded parties).

9. f^thlng contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmeht of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExNbii f - Ccnificallon Rgganllng OalurmcnL Sutpcnskxi ConUsclor Inillab ^ ^
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information of a participant is hot required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under.paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower Her covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to olher remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective, primary participant certifies to the best of Its Knowledge ano belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for det^arment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.
11.2. have not within a three-year period prieceding.this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rer)dered against them for commission of fraud or a crimirval off^se in
connection vrith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or locaO
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlerhent. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or deslrocUpn of
records, making fabe statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entily
(Federal, Slate or local) with commission ol any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
cf.thb certification; and

11.4. have r>o.t within a three-year period preceding this applicabon/proposal had one or more public
transactions.(Frteral. Stale or locaO terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
ccftiTicalion. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS-

13. By signing and submllling this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligiWe. or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shaD attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. the prospective towet tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
indude thb cUuse entlUcd 'Certification Regarding Oebarfnent, Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In olljower tiercovered
transactions and in aQ solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; ^

Qate Name;
Title:

E)rtDftF-C«rtJflcjllonR*g*'dlngOe&««Ttiert. Smpenston Coftiracaor Inttlati .
AndOmef ReiponafcBtty WiKefs

CuOMS/tiOM) PxfleaolJ ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTtFlCATIOH OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS
1

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idcntiried in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foftowing
ccrtirication:

Contractor vvill comply, and will require any sut>grantecs or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include*.'

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, naiior^al origin, aryj sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b}) which adopts by
ref^ence. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Reapients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in the rJeliyery of services or
t>er)erits. on the basis of raco, color, religion, national origin, and sex. -The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act ol 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistarKe from discriminating on the basis of race, oolcr. or national orijpn in any program or activity):

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Pederal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of-disabilHy. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in ariy program or activity;

.• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
government.services, public accommodations, commerdai fadlities. and'transportatlon;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685*86). which prohibits
discrimination on th.e basis of sex.in federally assisted education prograrns;

• the Age Discrimination Act.of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106*07}. which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age-in progriams or-activities receiving Federat-financiai assistance- ll docs rx)t-inc!ude.-
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Deparlmeni of JustiM "R^ulailons - Nondiscrirnlriatlon; EquarErriployrrieht Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279'(equal protection of the laws for faith*based ar^ community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundameritai prindplcs and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood drganlzalions;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): arid Whisllel>lower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authcrizaiion
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.-112-239'. enacted January 2.2013) ihe Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fad upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment
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Now Hampshtro Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

in the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds'of race, color, religion, national origtn, or sex
agalr\st a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the OfHce for Crw'l Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or dimion whhin the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Omtxidsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Idenliried in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

t. By Signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply vsith the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name;

<?/ s ///<: LLnit^
Date Name:

Title:

m
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CERTtRCATION REGARDING ENVIftONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C ■ Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking rwt be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library sendees to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid fur>ds, end portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply v»4th the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliarKe order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor idenilfied in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute Ihefoitowing
certirication:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
v^th all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

lie Namcr /M- PDate Namcf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

^  Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

* BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreerrent agrees to •
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy end Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 4S
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and sut)conlractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the Slate of New Hampshire..Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. "

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In, section 160.t03 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. • .

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "D^ta AQgredalion' shall h^e the same meaning .as'the tehm 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501. . ^ •

f. 'Health Care Ooeratlons' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology, for Economic and.Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle 6. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinveslment Act of
2009.

h. 'HtPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individuaf shall have the same meaning as the tehrr 'Individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). .

j- 'Prrvacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45.CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the sarr>e meaning as the term 'protected health
informallon' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20u" exhiWn ContndOf InaUU Lf^p
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I  'Required bv Law' shall have the same meanino as the term Tequired bv law' in 45 CFR

Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Oeparimcnl of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shgll mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health informallon that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected heialth information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals arid is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Dermitions - All terrris not otherwise 'defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 154, as amended from lime to time.-and the
HITECH

Act. ' :

(2) Buslrtess Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose; maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as.reasonably. necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not.limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a viol^ion of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I.- For-lhe proper management arxJ administration pf-.the-Busincss.Associate; ..
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. belw; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To extent Business Associate is penmitled under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third parly. Business Associate rnust obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wlH be confiijeniially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for, the purpose for which K was
disclosed to the third party; and^(ii) an agreement from such third party to nolify'Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosuie is reasonably neceissary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, dispose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entl^ so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the di^tosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

Lmr
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has e^rhausted all
remedies. ■

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or secur^
Mfeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall t^ bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violalion of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObliQations and Activities of Business ABSoclate.

a. The' Business Associate shall notify ihe.Covercd Entlt/s Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the.

. protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. . The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers the .likelihood of re-identiflcalion:

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was rnade;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available a!) of ils Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's corripliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PH.l under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the sarne
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

1/30U Exhibit I ConlriciO' IniUjIt
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pursuanl to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. V^thin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliarKe with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Emily, or as directed by Covered Entity, to ar> individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendn^nl of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Er^tity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

• i. Business Associate shali document suj:h disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be requjredrfor Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accd'uritihg of disciosures of PHI In accdrdarice with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written requesf from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to futfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. — .

k. In the event any individual requests access.to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Businew Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, "if .fofwardir»g the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business ^
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shali instead respond to the Iridividual's request as r^uired by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shal] return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Assbciate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
deslmction is not feasible, or.the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue' to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make thereturn or "destruction Infeasible. for so longas Business p
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Associate maintatr^s such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promplly notify Business Assdciate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreemeni, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the exient that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreemeni the Covered Entity may Immedlalely terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreemeni or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a limeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity . ̂
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Qefinitions and Requlatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HtPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ' q
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pefson(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit t regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnincalion provisions of section.(3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Name of the Contractor

AllII ( 1
The State

7.
RepresentativeSighat/ireybf Autaon >ianati/re of Author!Si^tJre of Authoriz

Name of Authorized Representative

1 ffiohr. n nP Hunti/T
uthorized Rei

'I /y//^
Title of Autixirized Representatives^

ed Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

p/rTcJvv
THIe of Authorized Representative

?/ /'/iih
Date

3/2014 '  ExMblH

HeiRA Irtsmnca Po/ubHiiy Act
Busineu Auodaite Agreement
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CERTlFtCATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA\ COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiiliy and Transparency Acl (FFATA) requires prime awardecs of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,20t0, to report on
data related (o executive compensation and associated firsiMier sut>-gr8nts of $25,000 or more. If the
irvltial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of (he date of the award.
In accortance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity ^
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source ^
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. T(^ compensatJon and names of the top five executives If:

tO.i. More than 805^ of annual.gross revenues are from.the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Trartsparency Act..Public Law 109-282 arid Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and'further agrees
to have the Contractor's repfesentative. as Identified in Sectiorw 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foilowir^ Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Conlractor Name;

s? Is) //c
Date Name: 1*^-

AecoonUbiCty And Tfanjpjrtncy Ad (FFAFA) CompBinee ^ /< / / /1
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FORMA ^

As the Contraclor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
t>ek>w listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entity Is: M ̂  ̂ ^ P V ̂

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, arvj/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

% NO YES

If the answer to 02 above Is NO. stop here

It the answer to 02 above Is YES, please answer ihe following;

3. Does Ihe public have access to irdormatlon about the compensation oif the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1 S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.?6m(a). 78o(d)) or. section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986? ' •

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, Stop here

If the answer'to 03 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amourjt:

cuoMtsnio?!)
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